
‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌1‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌School‌ ‌District‌ ‌ 
Regular‌ ‌Meeting‌ ‌Agenda‌ ‌-‌ ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌ 

Executive‌ ‌Session‌ ‌-‌ ‌6:30‌ ‌P.M.‌ ‌ 
Public‌ ‌Input‌ ‌&‌ ‌Action‌ ‌-‌ ‌7:30‌ ‌P.M.‌ ‌ 

Bernards‌ ‌High‌ ‌School‌ ‌Media‌ ‌Center‌‌ ‌  
‌ 
‌ 

I.‌ Call‌ ‌to‌ ‌Order‌ ‌&‌ ‌Welcome‌ ‌ 
Welcome‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌meeting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education‌‌of‌‌Somerset‌‌Hills.‌ ‌Please‌‌be‌‌advised‌‌that‌‌this‌‌                                 
and‌‌all‌‌meetings‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Board‌‌are‌‌open‌‌to‌‌the‌‌public‌‌and‌‌media,‌‌consistent‌‌with‌‌the‌‌Open‌‌Public‌‌                                   
Meetings‌ ‌Act:‌ ‌(Chapter‌ ‌231‌ ‌Laws‌ ‌of‌ ‌1975),‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌ ‌advance‌ ‌notice‌ ‌required‌ ‌therein‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌‌                             
provided.‌ ‌This‌‌is‌‌a‌‌meeting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education‌‌of‌‌Somerset‌‌Hills‌‌at‌‌which‌‌formal‌‌action‌‌                                 
may‌ ‌be‌ ‌taken.‌  ‌The‌ ‌public‌ ‌will‌ ‌have‌ ‌an‌ ‌opportunity‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌heard‌ ‌as‌ ‌shown‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌Agenda.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
II.‌ Roll‌ ‌Call‌ ‌ 

‌ 
III.‌ Executive‌ ‌Session‌ ‌ 

WHEREAS‌ ‌the‌ ‌“Open‌ ‌Public‌ ‌Meetings‌ ‌Act:”‌ ‌(Chapter‌ ‌231‌ ‌Laws‌ ‌of‌ ‌1975)‌ ‌authorizes‌ ‌a‌ ‌public‌‌                           
body‌ ‌to‌ ‌exclude‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌from‌ ‌that‌ ‌portion‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌at‌ ‌which‌ ‌specified‌ ‌topics‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌‌                                   
discussed‌‌under‌‌circumstances‌‌where‌‌the‌‌public‌‌consideration‌‌of‌‌such‌‌topics‌‌will‌‌clearly‌‌endanger‌‌                         
the‌ ‌public,‌ ‌or‌ ‌where‌ ‌the‌ ‌personal‌‌privacy‌‌or‌‌guaranteed‌‌rights‌‌of‌‌individuals‌‌whose‌‌activities‌‌or‌‌                             
affairs‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌discussed‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌clearly‌ ‌in‌ ‌danger‌ ‌of‌ ‌unwarranted‌ ‌invasions,‌ ‌and‌ ‌ 
WHEREAS‌‌the‌‌matters‌‌about‌‌to‌‌be‌‌presented‌‌for‌‌discussion‌‌clearly‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌“circumstances”‌‌test‌‌                           
of‌ ‌such‌ ‌Act:‌ ‌ 
RESOLVED‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌of‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌now‌ ‌adjourns‌ ‌its‌ ‌public‌ ‌session‌ ‌to‌‌ 
reconvene‌ ‌in‌ ‌Executive‌ ‌Session‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌purpose‌ ‌of‌ ‌discussing‌ ‌the‌ ‌following:‌ ‌Personnel,‌ ‌Student‌‌ 
Matters,‌ ‌Contracts,‌ ‌Negotiations‌ ‌and‌ ‌Litigation.‌‌ ‌  
And,‌ ‌be‌ ‌it‌ ‌further,‌ ‌ 
RESOLVED‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌discussion‌ ‌in‌ ‌Executive‌ ‌Session‌ ‌be‌ ‌disclosed‌ ‌when‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board’s‌‌                       
consideration‌‌of‌‌the‌‌subject‌‌matter‌‌has‌‌been‌‌closed,‌‌or‌‌that‌‌such‌‌matter‌‌does‌‌not‌‌adversely‌‌affect‌‌                               
the‌ ‌rights‌ ‌of‌ ‌prospective,‌ ‌current,‌ ‌or‌ ‌past‌‌public‌‌officers,‌‌or‌‌personnel‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Board,‌‌unless‌‌such‌‌                               
individuals‌ ‌have‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌requested‌ ‌the‌‌disclosures‌‌of‌‌such‌‌discussion‌‌at‌‌a‌‌public‌‌meeting‌‌and‌‌                             
provided‌ ‌such‌ ‌a‌ ‌public‌ ‌disclosure‌ ‌will‌ ‌no‌ ‌longer‌ ‌clearly‌ ‌endanger‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌interest.‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
IV.‌ Pledge‌ ‌of‌ ‌Allegiance‌ ‌ 

‌ 
V.‌ Roll‌ ‌Call‌ ‌ 

‌ 
VI.‌ Correspondence‌ ‌ 

1. Email‌‌from‌‌Laurie‌‌Lichtenfeld‌‌regarding‌‌Pre‌‌School‌‌Program‌‌and‌‌Special‌‌Ed‌‌Program‌‌in‌‌                           
the‌ ‌Middle‌ ‌School.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
VII.‌ Report‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Superintendent‌ ‌ 

1. Student‌ ‌Representatives’‌ ‌Report‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

VIII.‌ Public‌ ‌Comments‌ ‌for‌ ‌Actionable‌ ‌Agenda‌ ‌Items‌ ‌ 
We‌‌very‌‌much‌‌welcome‌‌input‌‌from‌‌the‌‌public.‌‌Public‌‌comments‌‌are‌‌welcome‌‌at‌‌this‌‌time‌‌on‌‌any‌‌                                 
actionable‌ ‌agenda‌ ‌item.‌ ‌Towards‌ ‌the‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌meeting‌‌there‌‌is‌‌a‌‌second‌‌public‌‌forum‌‌on‌‌any‌‌                                 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌2‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

topic.  Please‌ ‌state‌ ‌your‌ ‌name‌ ‌and‌ ‌address.‌ ‌Comments‌ ‌are‌ ‌limited‌ ‌to‌ ‌three‌ ‌minutes,‌ ‌but‌ ‌an‌                           
individual‌ ‌may‌ ‌speak‌ ‌a‌ ‌second‌ ‌time‌ ‌after‌ ‌all‌ ‌others‌ ‌who‌ ‌wish‌ ‌to‌ ‌speak‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌topic‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌‌                                   
heard. ‌ ‌‌Please‌ ‌understand‌ ‌that‌ ‌our‌ ‌public‌ ‌forums‌ ‌are‌ ‌not‌ ‌structured‌ ‌as‌ ‌question‌ ‌and‌ ‌answer‌‌                           
sessions,‌ ‌but‌ ‌are‌ ‌offered‌ ‌as‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌to‌ ‌share‌ ‌your‌ ‌thoughts‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board. ‌ ‌In‌ ‌instances‌‌                             
where‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌feels‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌misunderstanding‌ ‌or‌ ‌inaccuracy,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌President‌ ‌or‌‌                             
Superintendent‌‌may‌‌address‌‌the‌‌comment.‌‌In‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌New‌‌Jersey‌‌Statute,‌‌the‌‌Board‌‌will‌‌                           
not‌‌discuss‌‌matters‌‌regarding‌‌specific‌‌personnel.‌‌Public‌‌Comments‌‌will‌‌be‌‌limited‌‌to‌‌30‌‌minutes.‌ ‌                           
Thank‌ ‌you‌ ‌for‌ ‌your‌ ‌input.‌ 

‌ 
IX.‌ Approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌Minutes‌*‌ ‌  ‌ 

1.‌ Approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌Minutes‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌‌that‌‌the‌‌Somerset‌‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education‌‌approve‌‌the‌‌Public‌‌Input‌‌&‌‌Action,‌‌Special‌‌                             
Meetings‌ ‌and‌ ‌Executive‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌minutes‌ ‌for‌ ‌October‌ ‌20,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌and‌ ‌November‌ ‌8,‌ ‌2021.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
X.‌ FINANCE‌‌  ‌ 

A.‌‌  Committee‌ ‌Report‌ ‌&‌ ‌Discussion:‌ ‌ 
B.‌ Action‌ ‌Items:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
1.‌  Board‌ ‌Secretary‌ ‌&‌ ‌Treasurer‌ ‌Reports‌ ‌&‌ ‌Board‌ ‌Certification‌*‌ ‌ 
WHEREAS,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌Secretary‌ ‌has‌ ‌received‌ ‌the‌  ‌Reports‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Secretary‌ ‌and‌ ‌Treasurer‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌ 
month‌ ‌of‌ ‌September‌ ‌2021‌ ‌showing‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌balances:‌ ‌ 

                                                         ‌‌(1)‌‌ ‌From‌ ‌Secretary’s‌ ‌Report‌    ‌‌(2)‌‌ ‌From‌ ‌Treasurer’s‌ ‌Report‌ 
WHEREAS‌‌in‌‌compliance‌‌with‌‌N.J.A.C.6A:‌‌23-2.1(c)3‌‌the‌‌secretary‌‌has‌‌certified‌‌that,‌‌as‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                           
date‌‌of‌‌the‌‌report(s),‌‌no‌‌budgetary‌‌line‌‌item‌‌account‌‌has‌‌encumbrances‌‌and‌‌expenditures‌‌which‌‌in‌‌                             
total‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌appropriated‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌district‌ ‌board‌ ‌of‌ ‌education,‌ ‌now,‌ ‌therefore,‌ ‌be‌ ‌it‌ ‌ 
RESOLVED,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌accepts‌ ‌the‌‌above‌‌referenced‌‌report‌‌and‌‌certifications‌‌and‌‌                         
orders‌ ‌that‌ ‌they‌ ‌be‌ ‌attached‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌made‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌record‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌meeting,‌ ‌and‌ ‌be‌ ‌it‌ ‌ 
FURTHER‌ ‌RESOLVED,‌ ‌in‌ ‌compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌N.J.A.C.6A:‌ ‌23-3.11(c)‌‌4,‌‌the‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education‌‌                       
certifies‌‌that,‌‌after‌‌review‌‌of‌‌the‌‌secretary’s‌‌monthly‌‌financial‌‌reports‌‌(appropriation‌‌section)‌‌and‌‌                         
upon‌ ‌consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌appropriate‌ ‌district‌ ‌officials,‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌best‌ ‌of‌ ‌its‌ ‌knowledge,‌ ‌no‌ ‌major‌‌                             
account‌‌or‌‌fund‌‌has‌‌been‌‌overexpended‌‌in‌‌violation‌‌of‌‌N.J.A.C.6A:‌‌23-2.11(b),‌‌and‌‌that‌‌sufficient‌‌                           
funds‌ ‌are‌ ‌available‌ ‌to‌ ‌meet‌ ‌the‌ ‌district’s‌ ‌financial‌ ‌obligations‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌remainder‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌year.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

2.‌  Approve‌ ‌2020-2021‌ ‌Budget‌ ‌Transfers‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved‌‌that‌‌the‌‌Somerset‌‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education‌‌approves‌‌the‌‌attached‌‌list‌‌of‌‌budget‌‌transfers‌‌                             
for‌ ‌September‌ ‌2021.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
3.‌  Payment‌ ‌of‌ ‌Bills‌*‌ ‌  ‌ 
WHEREAS,‌‌the‌‌Board‌‌Secretary‌‌has‌‌presented‌‌attached‌‌September‌‌2021‌‌check‌‌registers‌‌with‌‌the‌‌                         
recommendation‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌checks‌ ‌be‌ ‌paid,‌ ‌and‌‌Now,‌‌therefore,‌‌be‌‌it‌‌Resolved,‌‌that‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                             
bills‌ ‌be‌ ‌paid‌ ‌and‌ ‌an‌ ‌itemized‌ ‌list‌ ‌be‌ ‌filed‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌minutes‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌meeting:‌ ‌ 

FUND‌ ‌  Board‌ ‌Secretary‌‌ ‌  
Cash‌ ‌Balance‌ ‌(1)‌ ‌ 

Treasurer‌ ‌Cash‌ ‌ 
Balance‌ ‌(2)‌ ‌ 

(10)‌ ‌General‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $10,125,745.69‌  $10,125,745.69‌ 
(20)‌ ‌Special‌ ‌Revenue‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  ($186,586.97)‌ ‌  ($186,586.97)‌ ‌ 
(30)‌ ‌Capital‌ ‌Projects‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $371,191.25‌  $371,191.25‌ 
(40)Debt‌ ‌Service‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $50,433.78‌  $50,433.78‌ 
Total‌ ‌Government‌ ‌Funds‌  $10,360,783.75‌  $10,360,783.75‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌3‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

  ‌ 
4.‌  Payment‌ ‌of‌ ‌Bills‌*‌ ‌  ‌ 
WHEREAS,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌Secretary‌ ‌has‌ ‌presented‌ ‌attached‌ ‌October‌ ‌2021‌ ‌check‌ ‌registers‌‌                     
with‌‌the‌‌recommendation‌‌that‌‌the‌‌checks‌‌be‌‌paid,‌‌and‌‌Now,‌‌therefore,‌‌be‌‌it‌‌Resolved,‌‌that‌‌                             
the‌ ‌following‌ ‌bills‌ ‌be‌ ‌paid‌ ‌and‌ ‌an‌ ‌itemized‌ ‌list‌ ‌be‌ ‌filed‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌minutes‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌meeting:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
5‌ Approve‌ ‌Parent‌ ‌Organization‌ ‌Fundraiser‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌ 
Superintendent,‌‌approves‌‌the‌‌following‌‌parent‌‌organization‌‌fundraisers‌‌for‌‌the‌‌2021-2022‌‌                   
school‌ ‌Year:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
6.‌  ‌‌Acceptance‌ ‌of‌ ‌Security‌ ‌Grant‌ ‌Award‌*‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌accepts‌ ‌the‌‌School‌‌Security‌‌Grant‌‌in‌‌the‌‌amount‌‌of‌‌$114,351‌‌that‌‌was‌‌approved‌‌                           
by‌ ‌NJDOE‌ ‌on‌  ‌9/22/2021.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

7.‌ Approve‌‌Submission‌‌and‌‌Acceptance‌‌of‌‌American‌‌Rescue‌‌Plan‌‌Act‌‌of‌‌2021‌‌-‌‌Elementary‌‌                         
and‌ ‌Secondary‌ ‌Schools‌ ‌Emergency‌ ‌Relief‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌(ESSR‌ ‌III)‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌ 
Superintendent,‌‌approves‌‌the‌‌submission‌‌and‌‌acceptance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Elementary‌‌and‌‌Secondary‌‌School‌‌                       
Emergency‌‌Relief‌‌Fund‌‌(ESSR‌‌III)‌‌provided‌‌by‌‌the‌‌American‌‌Rescue‌‌Plan‌‌Act‌‌of‌‌2021,‌‌effective‌‌                             
through‌ ‌September‌ ‌30,‌ ‌2024,‌ ‌per‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌listed‌ ‌below:‌‌ ‌  

FUND‌ ‌  ‌ 
(10)‌ ‌General‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $1,323,452.08‌ 
(20)‌ ‌Special‌ ‌Revenue‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $10,781.44‌ 
(30)‌ ‌Capital‌ ‌Projects‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  --‌‌  
(40)‌ ‌Debt‌ ‌Service‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $1,165,035.00‌ 
(60)‌ ‌Cafeteria‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $71,596.61‌ 
(90)‌ ‌Agency‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  --‌‌  
TOTAL‌ ‌  $2,570,865.13‌ 

FUND‌ ‌  ‌ 
(10)‌ ‌General‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $2,524,408.89‌ 
(20)‌ ‌Special‌ ‌Revenue‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $95.66‌ 
(30)‌ ‌Capital‌ ‌Projects‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  --‌ ‌ 
(40)‌ ‌Debt‌ ‌Service‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  --‌‌  
(60)‌ ‌Cafeteria‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $163.30‌  
(90)‌ ‌Agency‌ ‌Fund‌ ‌  $1,073,809.78‌ 
TOTAL‌ ‌  $3,598,477.63‌ 

‌  Organization‌ ‌  School‌ ‌  Event‌ ‌  Date‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  BHS‌ ‌Swim‌ ‌Team‌ ‌  BHS‌‌ ‌   Holiday‌ ‌Ornament‌ ‌Sale‌‌ ‌   11/19/21‌ ‌-‌ ‌11/29/21‌ ‌ 

Grant‌ ‌Allocations‌ ‌  Amount‌ ‌ 
ESSER‌ ‌  $477,118‌ ‌ 

Accelerated‌ ‌Learning‌ ‌Coaching‌ ‌and‌ ‌Educator‌ ‌Support‌ ‌Grant‌ ‌  $134,081‌ ‌ 
Evidence-Based‌ ‌Summer‌ ‌Learning‌ ‌and‌ ‌Enrichment‌ ‌Activities‌ ‌Grant‌ ‌  $40,000‌ ‌ 

Evidence-Based‌ ‌Comprehensive‌ ‌Beyond‌ ‌the‌ ‌School‌ ‌Day‌ ‌Activities‌ ‌Grant‌  $40,000‌ ‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌4‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 
8.‌ Approve‌ ‌Greater‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌County‌ ‌YMCA‌ ‌Agreement‌*‌ ‌ 

  Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ ‌  
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌‌Greater‌‌Somerset‌‌County‌‌YMCA‌‌agreement‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌use‌‌of‌‌facilities‌‌                       
for‌ ‌purpose‌ ‌of‌ ‌BHS‌ ‌swim‌ ‌team‌ ‌practices‌ ‌and‌ ‌meets‌ ‌not‌ ‌to‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌$11,000‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌                               
school‌ ‌year.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

9.‌ Approve‌ ‌2022-2023‌ ‌Budget‌ ‌Development‌ ‌Schedule‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌attached‌ ‌2022-2023‌ ‌Budget‌ ‌Development‌ ‌Schedule.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

10.‌  Approve‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌Consultant‌ ‌Agreement‌ ‌Revision‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌Consultant‌ ‌Agreement‌ ‌with‌ ‌Thomas‌ ‌DeAngelo‌‌for‌‌                   
the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year‌ ‌for‌ ‌an‌ ‌additional‌ ‌amount‌ ‌of‌ ‌$7,500.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

11.‌ Approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌Cancellation‌ ‌of‌ ‌Outstanding‌ ‌Checks‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌‌that‌‌the‌‌Somerset‌‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education‌‌approves‌‌the‌‌cancellation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                           
outstanding‌ ‌checks:‌ ‌ 

NJTSS‌ ‌Mental‌ ‌Health‌ ‌Support‌ ‌Staffing‌ ‌Grant‌ ‌  $45,000‌ ‌ 

General‌ ‌Fund‌‌ ‌  
Check‌ ‌Issue‌ ‌Date‌ ‌  Check‌ ‌Number‌    ‌‌Amount‌ ‌  

10/11/18‌ ‌  64076‌ ‌  $284.00‌ 
11/14/18‌ ‌  64220‌ ‌  $875.00‌ 
1/17/19‌ ‌  64495‌ ‌  $36.00‌ 
2/22/19‌ ‌  64706‌ ‌  $500.00‌ 
2/22/19‌ ‌  64737‌ ‌  $500.00‌ 
2/22/19‌ ‌  64829‌ ‌  $405.25‌ 
2/22/19‌ ‌  64841‌ ‌  $147.07‌ 
2/22/19‌ ‌  64965‌ ‌  $416.51‌ 
2/22/19‌ ‌  65126‌ ‌  $200.00‌ 
3/14/19‌ ‌  65305‌ ‌  $5,500.80‌ 
4/12/19‌ ‌  65509‌ ‌  $864.00‌ 
5/30/19‌ ‌  65650‌ ‌  $1,307.40‌ 
5/30/19‌ ‌  65694‌ ‌  $12,133.40‌ 
6/25/19‌ ‌  65731‌ ‌  $500.00‌ 
6/25/19‌ ‌  65739‌ ‌  $1,000.00‌ 
6/25/19‌ ‌  65801‌ ‌  $500.00‌ 
6/25/19‌ ‌  65845‌ ‌  $500.00‌ 
6/25/19‌ ‌  65869‌ ‌  $1,000.00‌ 
6/26/19‌ ‌  65881‌ ‌  $175.00‌ 
6/26/19‌ ‌  65896‌ ‌  $141.68‌ 
6/26/19‌ ‌  65910‌ ‌  $100.00‌ 
6/28/19‌ ‌  66010‌ ‌  $133.28‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌5‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
12.‌ Special‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Providers‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ ‌  
Superintendent,‌  ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌service‌ ‌providers‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

6/28/19‌ ‌  66086‌ ‌  $2,708.56‌ 
6/28/19‌ ‌  66120‌ ‌  $776.46‌ 
6/28/19‌ ‌  66125‌ ‌  $193.65‌ 
7/30/19‌ ‌  66295‌ ‌  $1,028.44‌ 
8/30/19‌ ‌  66490‌ ‌  $134.00‌ 

Payroll‌‌ ‌  
Check‌ ‌Issue‌ ‌Date‌ ‌  Check‌ ‌Number‌    ‌‌Amount‌ ‌  

6/21/19‌ ‌  606139‌ ‌  $1,831.30‌ 
6/21/19‌ ‌  606148‌ ‌  $1,771.02‌ 
6/21/19‌ ‌  606215‌ ‌  $674.31‌ 
6/21/19‌ ‌  606233‌ ‌  $85.82‌ 
7/30/19‌ ‌  606462‌ ‌  $155.29‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607333‌ ‌  $975.57‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607334‌ ‌  $472.15‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607335‌ ‌  $929.83‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607336‌ ‌  $975.57‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607337‌ ‌  $929.83‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607339‌ ‌  $950.83‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607359‌ ‌  $1.53‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607369‌ ‌  $2.31‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607372‌ ‌  $6.40‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607383‌ ‌  $6.72‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607386‌ ‌  $3.98‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607394‌ ‌  $144.57‌ 
8/15/19‌ ‌  607416‌ ‌  $1.15‌ 
9/15/19‌ ‌  607458‌ ‌  $160.42‌ 

Agency‌ ‌ 
Check‌ ‌Issue‌ ‌Date‌ ‌ 

Check‌ ‌Number‌ ‌    ‌Amount‌ ‌  

5/29/20‌ ‌  905292013‌ ‌  $399.27‌ 
5/29/20‌ ‌  905292014‌ ‌  $21.29‌ 

Provider‌ ‌  Service‌ ‌  Location‌ ‌  Est.‌ ‌Amount‌ ‌Not‌ ‌to‌‌ 
Exceed‌ ‌ 

Uplift‌ ‌Nursing‌ ‌  Nursing‌ ‌Services‌‌   Basking‌ ‌Ridge,‌ ‌NJ‌ ‌  $100‌ ‌/per‌ ‌hour‌ ‌up‌ ‌to‌ ‌ 
$10,000‌ ‌  



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌6‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

XI.‌‌  FACILITIES‌ ‌&‌ ‌OPERATIONS‌ ‌ 
A. Committee‌ ‌Report‌ ‌&‌ ‌Discussion:‌ ‌ 
B. Action‌ ‌Items:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
1.‌ Approve‌ ‌Comprehensive‌ ‌Maintenance‌ ‌Plan‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌‌ 
Comprehensive‌ ‌Maintenance‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
2.‌ Approve‌ ‌Annual‌ ‌Maintenance‌ ‌Budget‌ ‌Worksheet‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌‌approve‌‌ ‌the‌ ‌annual‌ ‌Maintenance‌‌ 
Budget‌ ‌Worksheet‌ ‌(M-1)‌ ‌calculation‌ ‌of‌ ‌$125,023.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

3.‌  Bus‌ ‌Evacuation‌ ‌Drills‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌Bus‌ ‌Evacuation‌ ‌Drills‌‌ 
for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌School‌ ‌Year.‌ ‌Reports‌ ‌for‌ ‌drills‌ ‌are‌ ‌on‌ ‌file‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Business‌ ‌Office:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
4.‌ Bus‌ ‌Evacuation‌ ‌Drills‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌Bus‌ ‌Evacuation‌ ‌Drill‌‌ 
for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌School‌ ‌Year.‌ ‌Reports‌ ‌for‌ ‌drills‌ ‌are‌ ‌on‌ ‌file‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Business‌ ‌Office:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
5.‌ Annual‌ ‌Report‌ ‌of‌ ‌Violence‌ ‌and‌ ‌Vandalism:‌ ‌2020-2021‌ ‌(Period‌ ‌2)*‌ ‌ 
Pursuant‌ ‌to‌ ‌N.J.S.A.‌ ‌18A:17-26,‌ ‌8‌ ‌unduplicated‌ ‌acts‌ ‌of‌ ‌violence‌ ‌and‌ ‌vandalism‌ ‌were‌ ‌reported‌ ‌to‌‌ 
the‌ ‌NJ‌ ‌Department‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Electronic‌ ‌Student‌ ‌Safety‌ ‌Data‌ ‌System‌ ‌(SSDS)‌ ‌during‌ ‌period‌ ‌2‌‌ 
(January‌ ‌1‌ ‌-‌ ‌June‌ ‌30,‌ ‌2021).‌ ‌ 
‌ 

6.‌ HIB‌ ‌Report‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌reviewed‌ ‌the‌ ‌Harassment,‌‌ 
Intimidation,‌ ‌and‌ ‌Bullying‌ ‌cases‌ ‌presented‌ ‌on‌ ‌October‌ ‌20,‌ ‌2021,‌ ‌and‌ ‌upheld‌ ‌the‌ ‌findings‌‌ 
and/or‌ ‌consequences‌ ‌recommended‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Superintendent.‌‌ ‌  

● BES‌ ‌2021‌ ‌-‌ ‌2022‌ ‌#1‌ ‌ 
● BMS‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌#2,‌ ‌#3,‌ ‌#4‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
XII.‌ CURRICULUM‌ ‌ 

A.‌  ‌Committee‌ ‌Report‌ ‌&‌ ‌Discussion:‌ ‌ 
B.‌  ‌Action‌ ‌Items:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
1.‌ Approve‌ ‌Field‌ ‌Trips‌ ‌ ‌   
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education,‌‌upon‌‌the‌‌recommendation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌field‌ ‌trips:‌‌ ‌  

‌  School‌ ‌  Date‌ ‌ 
a‌ ‌  Bernardsville‌ ‌Middle‌ ‌School‌ ‌  11/2,‌ ‌11/8‌ ‌ 
b‌ ‌  Bedwell‌ ‌Elementary‌ ‌School‌ ‌  10/20,‌ ‌10/22,‌ ‌10/27,‌ ‌11/2,‌ ‌11/5,‌ ‌11/8‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Date‌ ‌ 
a‌ ‌  Bernards‌ ‌High‌ ‌School‌ ‌  9/15‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Trip‌ ‌  #‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Students‌ ‌ 

#‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Faculty‌ ‌ 

#‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Chaperones‌ ‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌7‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 
2.‌ Amend‌ ‌Approval‌  ‌Field‌ ‌Trips‌*‌ ‌ ‌   
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌amend‌ ‌the‌ ‌approval‌ ‌of‌  ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌field‌ ‌trips:‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
3.‌ Approve‌ ‌Field‌ ‌Trips‌*‌ ‌ ‌   
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education,‌‌upon‌‌the‌‌recommendation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌field‌ ‌trips:‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
4.‌ Amend‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌Professional‌ ‌Development‌*‌‌ ‌  
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌amends‌ ‌the‌ ‌approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌professional‌ ‌development‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌                     
2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
5.‌ Approve‌ ‌Professional‌ ‌Development‌*‌‌ ‌  
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education,‌‌upon‌‌the‌‌recommendation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌professional‌ ‌development‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌‌                 
school‌ ‌year:‌ 

a‌ ‌  BES‌ ‌  Bronx‌ ‌Zoo:‌ ‌Bronx,‌ ‌NY‌ ‌  99‌ ‌  13‌ ‌  17‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Trip‌ ‌  #‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Students‌ ‌ 

#‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Faculty‌ ‌ 

#‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Chaperones‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  BHS‌‌ ‌   Community‌ ‌Based‌ ‌Instruction:‌ ‌Bernards‌ ‌Cafe,‌‌ 
Bernardsville‌ ‌(Stars‌ ‌Program)‌‌ ‌   6‌‌ ‌7‌ ‌  3‌‌ ‌5‌ ‌  0‌ ‌ 

g‌ ‌  BHS‌ ‌  Community‌ ‌Based‌ ‌Instruction:‌ ‌5‌ ‌Below‌ ‌&‌ ‌Panera,‌‌ 
Raritan‌ ‌&‌ ‌Somerville‌  ‌(Stars‌ ‌Program)‌ ‌  6‌‌ ‌7‌ ‌  3‌‌ ‌5‌ ‌  0‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Trip‌ ‌  #‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Students‌ ‌ 

#‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Faculty‌ ‌ 

#‌ ‌of‌‌ 
Chaperones‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  BHS‌ ‌  Accuplacer‌ ‌Testing:‌  ‌RVCC‌ ‌Raritan,‌ ‌NJ‌‌ ‌  
Multiple‌ ‌Dates‌ ‌  16‌ ‌  1‌ ‌  0‌ ‌ 

b‌ ‌  BHS‌ ‌  Metropolitan‌ ‌Museum‌ ‌of‌ ‌Art:‌ ‌New‌ ‌York,‌ ‌NY‌ ‌  30‌ ‌  3‌ ‌  1‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Name‌ ‌  Workshop/Conference‌ ‌  Date‌ ‌  Est.‌‌ 
Cost‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  District‌ ‌  Barna,‌ ‌Lindsay‌‌   NJPSA‌ ‌/‌ ‌FEA‌ ‌Legal‌ ‌One‌ ‌Hot‌ ‌Issues‌ ‌in‌‌ 
School‌ ‌Law‌ ‌  10/06‌‌ ‌12/14‌ ‌  $150‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Name‌ ‌  Workshop/Conference‌ ‌  Date‌ ‌  Est.‌‌ 
Cost‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  District‌‌ ‌   Barna,‌ ‌Lindsay‌‌   DOE‌ ‌Mandated‌ ‌Gang‌ ‌Awareness‌ ‌Training‌‌ ‌   11/30‌ ‌  $0‌ ‌ 

b‌ ‌  District‌‌ ‌   Lucas,‌ ‌Douglas‌ ‌  NJSBGA:‌ ‌Lead‌ ‌Renovation‌ ‌Repair‌ ‌&‌ ‌Painting‌‌ 
Training‌‌ ‌   11/4‌ ‌  $15‌ ‌ 

c‌ ‌  District‌ ‌  Santoro,‌ ‌Heather‌‌ ‌   Calming‌ ‌the‌ ‌Crowd:‌ ‌ 
Restoring‌ ‌Civility‌ ‌at‌ ‌Board‌ ‌Meetings‌ ‌  11/18‌ ‌  $0‌ ‌ 

d‌ ‌  District‌‌ ‌   Walker,‌ ‌Jaime‌ ‌  DOE‌ ‌Mandated‌ ‌Gang‌ ‌Awareness‌ ‌Training‌‌ ‌   11/30‌ ‌  $0‌ ‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌8‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 
6.‌ Approve‌ ‌Professional‌ ‌Development‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌‌Board‌‌of‌‌Education,‌‌upon‌‌the‌‌recommendation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                         
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌professional‌ ‌development‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌‌                 
school‌ ‌year:‌ 

‌ 
XIII.‌ PERSONNEL‌ ‌ ‌   

A.‌ Committee‌ ‌Report‌ ‌and‌ ‌Discussion.‌ ‌ 
B.‌ Action‌ ‌Items:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

1.‌ Accept‌ ‌Resignation‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌accepts‌ ‌the‌ ‌resignation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌employee:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
2.‌ Approve‌ ‌Family‌ ‌Medical‌ ‌Leave‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌Family‌ ‌Medical‌ ‌Leave‌ ‌of‌ ‌Absence‌ ‌dates‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌ 
2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌ 

‌ 

e‌ ‌  BHS‌‌ ‌   DeAngelo,‌ ‌Stephanie‌ ‌  FLENJ:‌ ‌Planting‌ ‌the‌ ‌Seeds‌ ‌for‌ ‌Departmental‌‌ 
Growth‌‌ ‌   2/3‌ ‌  $20‌ ‌ 

f‌ ‌  BHS‌ ‌  Neigel,‌ ‌Scott‌ ‌   ‌FEA:‌ ‌School‌ ‌Climate‌ ‌for‌ ‌Adults‌‌ ‌   1/11‌ ‌  $0‌ ‌ 

‌  School‌ ‌  Name‌ ‌  Workshop/Conference‌ ‌  Date(s)‌ ‌  Est.‌‌ 
Cost‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  BES‌ ‌  Jaeger,‌ ‌Jamie‌ ‌  Tools‌ ‌for‌ ‌Reading:‌ ‌Sound‌ ‌Walls‌‌ ‌  
12/2,‌ ‌12/7,‌‌ 
12/9‌ ‌&‌‌ 
12/14‌ ‌ 

$120‌ 

b‌ ‌  BES‌ ‌  Kleinstein,‌ ‌Mary‌‌ ‌   TC‌ ‌-‌ ‌Tapping‌ ‌Into‌ ‌the‌ ‌Power‌ ‌of‌ ‌Decodable‌ ‌texts‌ ‌  12/10‌ ‌  $50‌ 

c‌ ‌  BMS‌ ‌  Russo,‌ ‌Dawn‌‌ ‌   TC‌ ‌-‌ ‌Looking‌ ‌at‌ ‌Fantasy‌ ‌Reading‌ ‌Units‌ ‌through‌‌ 
New‌ ‌Lenses‌ ‌  12/17‌ ‌  $50‌ 

d‌ ‌  BMS‌ ‌  Latzke,‌ ‌Brian‌‌ ‌   DOE‌ ‌Mandated‌ ‌Gang‌ ‌Awareness‌ ‌Training‌‌ ‌   11/30‌ ‌  $0‌ 

e‌ ‌  BMS‌ ‌  Haney,‌ ‌Jacob‌‌ ‌   TC‌ ‌-‌ ‌Small‌ ‌Group‌ ‌Work‌ ‌&‌ ‌Toolkits‌ ‌for‌ ‌Teaching‌‌ 
Traction‌ ‌&‌ ‌Guiding‌ ‌Readers‌ ‌Up‌ ‌Levels‌‌ ‌   12/14‌ ‌  $50‌ 

f‌ ‌  BMS‌ ‌  Internoscia,‌ ‌Brielle‌ ‌  MUJC:‌ ‌Child‌ ‌Study‌ ‌Team‌ ‌Training‌ ‌Series‌‌ ‌   12/15‌ ‌  $85‌ 

g‌ ‌  BMS‌ ‌  Incledon,‌ ‌Cassandra‌ ‌  MUJC:‌ ‌Child‌ ‌Study‌ ‌Team‌ ‌Training‌ ‌Series‌‌ ‌   12/15‌ ‌  $85‌ 

‌  Name‌ ‌  School‌ ‌  Position‌ ‌  Effective‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Latzke,‌ ‌Brian‌‌ ‌   BMS‌ ‌  Assistant‌ ‌Principal‌‌ ‌   12/28/2021‌ ‌ 

‌  ID‌ ‌  School‌‌ ‌   Position‌ ‌  Dates‌ ‌for‌ ‌Accumulated‌‌ 
Sick‌ ‌Leave‌ ‌ 

Dates‌ ‌for‌ ‌FMLA‌‌ ‌  
(Unpaid‌ ‌with‌ ‌Benefits)‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  8543‌ ‌  BES‌ ‌   ‌Teacher‌ ‌BA‌ ‌  02/04/2022‌ ‌-‌ ‌04/01/2022‌ ‌  04/04/2022‌ ‌-‌ ‌06/30/2022‌ ‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌9‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

3.‌ Approve‌ ‌Appointment‌  ‌Special‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Full‌ ‌Time‌ ‌Paraprofessional‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent‌  ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌appointment‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌Special‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Part-Time‌‌ 
Paraprofessional‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌District‌ ‌ 

‌ 
4.‌ Approve‌ ‌Interpreter/Translator‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ ‌  
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌Interpreters/Translator‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌‌ ‌  

5.‌ Approve‌ ‌Leave‌ ‌Replacement‌ ‌Teacher‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌Leave‌ ‌Replacement‌ ‌Teacher‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌‌ 
school‌ ‌year,‌ ‌‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌further‌ ‌investigation‌ ‌‌pursuant‌ ‌to‌ ‌law‌:‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
6.‌ Approve‌ ‌Overloads‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌  ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌overloads‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌BHS‌ ‌ 

‌  Name‌ ‌  Replace‌ ‌  Position‌ ‌  Step‌  Hourly‌  Effective‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Petrie,‌ ‌George‌ ‌K.‌ ‌  8911‌ ‌  Para-Spec‌ ‌Ed‌ ‌B‌ ‌Hourly‌ ‌  1‌ ‌  $17.34‌  Pending‌‌ 
Clearance‌ ‌ 

‌  Name‌ ‌  Position‌ ‌  Rate‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Collins,‌ ‌Kay‌ ‌L.‌ ‌  Translator‌ ‌/Interpreter‌‌ ‌   $59.11/Hr‌ ‌ 

‌  Name‌ ‌  School‌  Position‌ ‌  Replace‌  Level‌ ‌  Step‌ ‌  Salary‌ ‌  Dates‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Maginnis,‌ ‌Luke‌ ‌  BMS‌ ‌  Physical‌ ‌Education‌ ‌  8686‌ ‌  BA‌ ‌  2-3‌ ‌  $61,300‌ ‌ 
prorated‌ ‌ 

11/18/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
1/23/2022‌ ‌‌(or‌‌ 

sooner)‌ ‌ 

‌  Course‌ ‌  Teacher‌ ‌  Term‌ ‌  Salary‌ ‌ 
OVERLOAD‌‌ 

Salary‌‌ 
prorated‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  English‌ ‌III‌ ‌  Falzarano,‌ ‌Jeffrey‌ ‌ 
12/1/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
6/30/2022‌ ‌ 

$103,845‌ ‌  $11,338.53‌ 

b‌ ‌  English‌ ‌III‌ ‌(A)‌ ‌-‌ ‌ICS‌ ‌  Ryersen,‌ ‌Kathleen‌ ‌ 
12/1/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
6/30/2022‌ ‌ 

$108,966‌ ‌  $11,897.74‌ 

c‌ ‌  English‌ ‌IV‌ ‌(A)‌ ‌-‌ ‌ICS‌ ‌  Carey,‌ ‌Amanda‌ ‌ 
12/1/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
6/30/2022‌ ‌ 

$65,725‌ ‌  $7,176.36‌ 

d‌ ‌  English‌ ‌IV‌ ‌-‌ ‌ICS‌ ‌  Lehnhoff‌ ‌Jr.,‌ ‌Robert‌ ‌ 
12/1/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
6/30/2022‌ ‌ 

$70,725‌ ‌  $7,722.38‌ 

e‌ ‌  English‌ ‌III‌ ‌(A)‌ ‌-‌ ‌ICS‌ ‌  Stypolkowski,‌ ‌Emily‌ ‌ 
12/1/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
6/30/2022‌ ‌ 

$67,205‌ ‌  $7,338.16‌ 

f‌ ‌  Study‌ ‌Skills‌‌ ‌   Nelson,‌ ‌Ryan‌‌ ‌  
12/1/2021‌ ‌-‌‌ 
6/30/2022‌ ‌ 

$73,115‌ ‌  $7,983.28‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌10‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 
7.‌ Rescind‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌Athletic/Co-Curricular‌ ‌Position‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌rescind‌ ‌the‌ ‌approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌athletic‌ ‌stipend‌ ‌positions‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌ 
2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
8.‌ Amend‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌Athletic/Co-Curricular‌ ‌Volunteer‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌amends‌ ‌the‌ ‌approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌volunteers‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌2021-‌ ‌2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
9.‌ Approve‌  ‌Athletic/Co-Curricular‌ ‌Positions‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌BHS‌ ‌co-curricular‌ ‌and‌ ‌athletic‌ ‌stipends‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌ 
2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
10.‌ Approve‌  ‌Athletic/Co-Curricular‌ ‌Positions‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌BMS‌ ‌co-curricular‌ ‌and‌ ‌athletic‌ ‌stipends‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌ 
2021-2022‌ ‌school‌ ‌year:‌ ‌ 

‌  Last‌ ‌Name‌ ‌  First‌ ‌Name‌‌ ‌   BHS‌ ‌Co-Curricular‌ ‌Position‌ ‌  Season‌‌ ‌   Stipend‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Maurizio‌ ‌  Andrew‌ ‌  Winter‌ ‌Track:‌ ‌Assistant‌‌ ‌   Winter‌ ‌  $5,400‌ ‌ 

‌  Last‌ ‌Name‌‌ ‌   First‌ ‌Name‌‌ ‌   Season‌‌ ‌   Position‌‌ ‌  

a‌ ‌  Witty‌‌ ‌   Dean‌‌   Winter‌‌ ‌Spring‌ ‌  Volunteer‌ ‌‌Fencing‌‌ ‌Lacrosse‌ ‌ 

‌  Last‌ ‌Name‌ ‌  First‌ ‌Name‌‌ ‌   BHS‌ ‌Co-Curricular‌ ‌Position‌ ‌  Season‌‌ ‌   Stipend‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Falzarano‌ ‌  Jeffrey‌ ‌  Assistant‌ ‌AD:‌ ‌Winter‌ ‌(50%)‌ ‌  Winter‌ ‌ 
$2,400‌ ‌(½‌ ‌of‌‌ 

$4,800)‌ ‌ 

b‌ ‌  Hammond‌ ‌  Jaclyn‌ ‌  Fencing:‌ ‌Assistant‌‌ ‌   Winter‌ ‌  $5,400‌ ‌ 

c‌ ‌  Maginnis‌ ‌  Luke‌ ‌  Basketball:‌ ‌Women's‌ ‌Assistant‌ ‌(FR)‌ ‌ ‌(50%)‌ ‌  Winter‌ ‌ 
$3,325‌ ‌(½‌ ‌of‌‌ 

$6,650)‌ ‌ 

d‌ ‌  LaValle‌  Alexa‌ ‌  Basketball:‌ ‌Women's‌ ‌Assistant‌ ‌(FR)‌ ‌ ‌(50%)‌ ‌  Winter‌ ‌ 
$3,325‌ ‌(½‌ ‌of‌‌ 

$6,650)‌ ‌ 

e‌ ‌  Dolson‌ ‌  Margaret‌ ‌  Media‌ ‌Center‌ ‌After‌ ‌Hours‌ ‌Supervisor‌ ‌  ‌  $25/hour‌ ‌ 

f‌ ‌  Hart‌ ‌  Amy‌ ‌  Media‌ ‌Center‌ ‌After‌ ‌Hours‌ ‌Supervisor‌ ‌  ‌  $25/hour‌ ‌ 

g‌ ‌  Pair‌ ‌  Randall‌ ‌  Media‌ ‌Center‌ ‌After‌ ‌Hours‌ ‌Supervisor‌ ‌  ‌  $25/hour‌ ‌ 

h‌ ‌  Snyder‌ ‌  Allison‌ ‌  Media‌ ‌Center‌ ‌After‌ ‌Hours‌ ‌Supervisor‌ ‌  ‌  $25/hour‌ ‌ 

‌  Last‌ ‌Name‌ ‌  First‌ ‌Name‌‌ ‌   BMS‌ ‌Co-Curricular‌ ‌Position‌ ‌  Season‌‌ ‌   Stipend‌ ‌ 

a‌ ‌  Koch‌ ‌  Kevin‌ ‌  Basketball:‌ ‌Boys’‌ ‌Assistant‌‌ ‌   Winter‌ ‌  $3,115‌ ‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌11‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 
11.‌  ‌‌Approve‌ ‌Increase‌ ‌in‌ ‌Assignment*‌‌ ‌  
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approve‌ ‌an‌ ‌increase‌ ‌in‌ ‌assignment‌ ‌from‌ ‌part-time‌ ‌to‌ ‌full-time‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌Confidential‌‌ 
Secretary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌Assistant‌ ‌Superintendent,‌ ‌Cynthia‌ ‌Duchantier.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

XIV.‌ POLICY‌ ‌ 
A. Committee‌ ‌Report‌ ‌and‌ ‌Discussion.‌ ‌ 

      ‌B.‌ Action‌ ‌Items:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

1.‌  First‌ ‌Reading‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌first‌ ‌reading‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌bylaw,‌ ‌policy‌ ‌&‌ ‌regulation:‌ ‌ ‌   

‌   
2.‌  Second‌ ‌Reading‌*‌ ‌ 
Resolved,‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education,‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
Superintendent,‌ ‌approves‌ ‌the‌ ‌second‌ ‌reading‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌bylaw,‌ ‌policy‌ ‌&‌ ‌regulation:‌ ‌ ‌   

Policy‌ ‌/‌‌ 
Regulation‌ ‌#‌ ‌  Title‌ ‌ 

P2425‌ ‌  Emergency‌ ‌Virtual‌ ‌or‌ ‌Remote‌ ‌Instruction‌ ‌Program‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(New)‌ ‌ 

P5751‌ ‌&‌ ‌R5751‌ ‌  Sexual‌ ‌Harassment‌ ‌of‌ ‌Students‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌/‌‌ 
Regulation‌ ‌#‌ ‌  Title‌ ‌ 

P0164‌ ‌  Conduct‌ ‌of‌ ‌Board‌ ‌Meeting‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P1648.13‌ ‌  School‌ ‌Employee‌ ‌Vaccination‌ ‌Requirements‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(New)‌ ‌ 

R5131‌‌ ‌   Student‌ ‌Random‌ ‌Drug‌ ‌Testing‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P2422‌ ‌  Comprehensive‌ ‌Health‌ ‌and‌ ‌Physical‌ ‌Education‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P2425‌ ‌  Emergency‌ ‌Virtual‌ ‌or‌ ‌Remote‌ ‌Instruction‌ ‌Program‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌ 

P2467‌ ‌  Surrogate‌ ‌Parents‌ ‌and‌ ‌Resource‌ ‌Family‌ ‌Parents‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌ 

P3224‌ ‌&‌ ‌R3224‌ ‌  Evaluation‌ ‌of‌ ‌Principals,‌ ‌Vice‌ ‌Principals,‌ ‌and‌ ‌Assistant‌ ‌Principals‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P5116‌ ‌  Education‌ ‌of‌ ‌Homeless‌ ‌Children‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P7432‌ ‌&‌ ‌R7432‌ ‌  Eye‌ ‌Protection‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P8420‌ ‌  Emergency‌ ‌and‌ ‌Crisis‌ ‌Situations‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 



‌ 
Somerset‌ ‌Hills‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌ ‌Education‌ ‌Agenda‌    ‌November‌ ‌17,‌ ‌2021‌ ‌  Page‌  ‌12‌ ‌ ‌   
__________________________________________________________________________________________‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

XV.‌ COMMUNITY‌ ‌RELATIONS‌ ‌ 
               ‌A.‌  ‌Committee‌ ‌Report‌ ‌&‌ ‌Discussion:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
XVI.‌ SUPPLEMENTARY‌ ‌MATTERS‌ ‌ 

‌ 
XVII.‌ PUBLIC‌ ‌COMMENTS‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
Public‌‌comments‌‌are‌‌welcome‌‌at‌‌this‌‌time‌‌on‌‌any‌‌topic.‌ ‌Public‌‌Comments‌‌will‌‌be‌‌limited‌‌to‌‌3‌‌minutes.‌‌                                   
Please‌ ‌state‌ ‌your‌ ‌name‌ ‌and‌ ‌address.‌  ‌Thank‌ ‌you‌ ‌for‌ ‌your‌ ‌input.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
XVIII.‌ ‌‌ADJOURNMENT‌ ‌ 

‌ 
*Note:‌ ‌The‌ ‌areas‌ ‌of‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌voting‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌Bedminster‌ ‌district‌ ‌representative‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Board‌ ‌of‌‌                             
Education‌‌are:‌ ‌(a)‌‌Tuition‌‌to‌‌be‌‌charged‌‌the‌‌sending‌‌district‌‌by‌‌the‌‌receiving‌‌district‌‌and‌‌the‌‌bill‌‌lists‌‌or‌‌                                     
contracts‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌purchase,‌‌operation‌‌or‌‌maintenance‌‌of‌‌facilities,‌‌equipment‌‌and‌‌instructional‌‌materials‌‌                         
to‌ ‌be‌ ‌used‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌education‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌pupils‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌sending‌ ‌district;‌‌ (b)‌ ‌New‌ ‌capital‌‌construction‌‌to‌‌be‌‌utilized‌‌             
by‌ ‌sending‌ ‌district‌ ‌pupils;‌ ‌(c)‌ ‌Appointment,‌ ‌transfer‌ ‌or‌ ‌removal‌ ‌of‌ ‌teaching‌ ‌staff‌ ‌members‌ ‌providing‌‌                           
services‌ ‌to‌ ‌pupils‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌sending‌ ‌district,‌ ‌including‌ ‌any‌ ‌teaching‌ ‌staff‌ ‌member‌ ‌who‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌member‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                                   
receiving‌‌district's‌‌central‌‌administrative‌‌staff;‌ ‌(d)‌‌Addition‌‌or‌‌deletion‌‌of‌‌curricular‌‌and‌‌extracurricular‌‌                         
programs‌ ‌involving‌ ‌pupils‌‌of‌‌the‌‌sending‌‌district;‌ ‌(‌e)‌ ‌‌Any‌‌matter‌‌directly‌‌involving‌‌the‌‌sending‌‌district‌‌                             
pupils‌ ‌or‌ ‌programs‌ ‌and‌ ‌services‌ ‌utilized‌ ‌by‌ ‌those‌ ‌pupils;‌ ‌(f)‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌annual‌ ‌receiving‌ ‌district‌‌                               
budget;‌ ‌(g)‌ ‌Any‌ ‌collectively‌ ‌negotiated‌ ‌agreement‌ ‌involving‌ ‌employees‌ ‌who‌ ‌provide‌ ‌services‌ ‌utilized‌ ‌by‌‌                         
sending‌ ‌district‌ ‌pupils;‌ ‌(h)‌ ‌Any‌ ‌individual‌ ‌employee‌ ‌contracts‌ ‌not‌ ‌covered‌ ‌by‌ ‌a‌ ‌collectively‌ ‌negotiated‌‌                           
agreement,‌‌if‌‌those‌‌employees‌‌provide‌‌or‌‌oversee‌‌programs‌‌or‌‌services‌‌utilized‌‌by‌‌sending‌‌district‌‌pupils;‌‌                             
and‌ ‌(i)‌‌Any‌‌matter‌‌concerning‌‌governance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌receiving‌‌district‌‌board‌‌of‌‌education‌‌including,‌‌but‌‌not‌‌                               
limited‌ ‌to,‌ ‌the‌ ‌selection‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌board‌ ‌president‌ ‌or‌ ‌vice-president,‌ ‌approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌board‌ ‌bylaws,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                               
employment‌‌of‌‌professionals‌‌or‌‌consultants‌‌such‌‌as‌‌attorneys,‌‌architects,‌‌engineers,‌‌or‌‌others‌‌who‌‌provide‌‌                           
services‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌receiving‌ ‌district‌ ‌board‌ ‌of‌ ‌education.‌ ‌ 
(cf:‌ ‌P.L.1996,‌ ‌c.103,‌ ‌s.1)‌ ‌ 

R8420.1‌ ‌  Fire‌ ‌and‌ ‌Fire‌ ‌Drills‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P8540‌ ‌  School‌ ‌Nutrition‌ ‌Programs‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P8550‌ ‌  Meal‌ ‌Charges/Outstanding‌ ‌Food‌ ‌Service‌ ‌Bill‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 

P8600‌ ‌  Student‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌(M)‌ ‌(Revised)‌ ‌ 



Somerset Hills School District
November 17, 2021

ADDENDUM

X. FINANCE

4. Payment of Bills*   (Revised)
WHEREAS, the Board Secretary has presented attached October 2021
check registers with the recommendation that the checks be paid, and
Now, therefore, be it Resolved, that the following bills be paid and an
itemized list be filed with the minutes of this meeting:

FUND
(10) General Fund $2,524,408.89 $3,125,894.99
(20) Special Revenue Fund $95.66 $61,681.63
(30) Capital Projects Fund -- --
(40) Debt Service Fund -- --
(60) Cafeteria Fund $163.30 $163.30
(90) Agency Fund $1,073,809.78 $1,073,809.78
TOTAL $3,598,477.63 $4,261,549.70

13. Approve Service Express Agreement*
Resolved, that the Somerset Hills Board of Education, upon the recommendation
of the Superintendent, approves the warranty of network switches agreement with
Service Express, LLC for 2021-2022 school year (ending 8/31/2022) in the
amount of $14,637.25.

14. Approve Robert Half Agreement*
Resolved, that the Somerset Hills Board of Education, upon the recommendation
of the Superintendent, approves the employment agreement with Robert Half
Talent Solutions for the 2021-2022 school year at the rate of $25-35 p/hour in the
amount not to exceed $25,000.

XII. CURRICULUM

3. Approve Field Trips*
Resolved, that the Somerset Hills Board of Education, upon the
recommendation of the Superintendent, approves the following field
trips:

School Trip # of
Students

# of
Faculty

# of
Chaperones

c BHS Pfizer - Digital for Girls: Virtual 20 1 0



Somerset Hills School District
November 17, 2021

ADDENDUM

XIII. PERSONNEL

12. Approve Substitute*
Resolved, that the Somerset Hills Board of Education, upon the recommendation
of the Superintendent, approve the following substitutes for the 2021-2022 school
year subject to further investigation pursuant to law:

Last Name First Name Substitute Position Certification Effective

a DeStefano Dominick Teacher/Paraprofessional County Substitute Pending Clearance



POLICY 
 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Bylaws 

0164/Page 1 of 2 

CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETING 

0164 CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETING 

  

Parliamentary Authority 

  

Roberts' Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern the Board of Education in its deliberations 

and acts in all cases in which it is not inconsistent with statutes of the State of New Jersey, rules 

of the State Board of Education, or these bylaws. 

  

Presiding Officer 

  

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board.  In the absence, disability, or 

disqualification of the President, the Vice President shall act in his/her place; if neither person is 

present, any member shall be designated by a plurality of those present to preside.  The act of any 

person so designated shall be legal and binding. 

  

Announcement of Adequate Notice 

  

The person presiding shall commence each meeting with an announcement of the notice given for 

the meeting or a statement regarding the lack of adequate notice, in accordance with law. 

  

Agenda 

  

The Superintendent in cooperation with the Board President and School Business 

Administrator/Board Secretary shall prepare an agenda of items of business to come before the 

Board at each meeting.  The agenda shall be delivered to each Board member no later than five 

days before the meeting and shall include such reports and supplementary materials as are 

appropriate and available. 

  

The order of business shall be as follows: 

  

Call to Order & Welcome 

Roll Call 

Adjourn Executive Session; Return to Regular Meeting 

Pledge of Allegiance 



POLICY 
 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Bylaws 

0164/Page 2 of 2 

CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETING 

Roll Call 

Correspondence 

Report of the Superintendent 

Public Questions and Comments for Actionable Agenda Items 

Approval of Minutes 

Finance 

Facilities and Operations 

Curriculum 

Personnel  

Policy 

Community Relations  

Supplementary Matters 

Public Questions and Comments on any topic 

Adjournment 

  

  

N.J.S.A. 10:4-10 

N.J.S.A. 18A:16-1.1 

  

  

Adopted:  1 October 2008 
Revised: 12 June 2019 
  

  

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

1648.13/page 1 of 3 

School Employee Vaccination Requirements 

Aug 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT No. 225] 

 

1648.13  SCHOOL EMPLOYEE VACCINATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

In accordance with Executive Order No. 253 signed by the Governor of New 

Jersey on August 23, 2021, the Board shall adopt and maintain a policy that 

requires all covered workers to either provide adequate proof that they have been 

fully vaccinated or submit to COVID-19 testing at a minimum of one to two times 

each week.   

 

This requirement shall take effect on October 18, 2021, at which time any covered 

workers that have not provided adequate proof to the school district that they are 

fully vaccinated must submit to COVID-19 testing at a minimum of one to two 

times each week on an ongoing basis until fully vaccinated. 

 

For purposes of Executive Order 253 and this Policy, “covered workers” shall 

include all individuals employed by the Board of Education, both full and        

part-time, including, but not limited to, administrators; teachers; educational 

support professionals; individuals providing food, custodial, and administrative 

support services; substitute teachers, whether employed directly by the Board of 

Education or otherwise contracted; contractors; providers; and any other 

individuals performing work in the school district whose job duties require them 

to make regular visits to the school district, including volunteers.  Covered 

workers do not include individuals who visit the school district only to provide 

one-time or limited duration repairs, services, or construction. 

 

A covered worker shall be considered “fully vaccinated” for COVID-19 two 

weeks or more after they have received the second dose in a two-dose series or 

two weeks or more after they have received a single-dose vaccine. Individuals 

will only be considered fully vaccinated after they have received a COVID-19 

vaccine that is currently authorized for Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) by 

the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) or the World Health 

Organization (WHO), or that are approved for use by the same.   

 

Workers who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom vaccination status is 

unknown, or who have not provided sufficient proof of documentation, shall      

be considered unvaccinated in accordance with the provisions of Executive Order 

253.    

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

1648.13/page 2 of 3 

School Employee Vaccination Requirements 

 

 

Covered workers shall demonstrate proof of full vaccination status by presenting 

any of the following documents if they list COVID-19 vaccines currently 

authorized for EUA by the FDA or the WHO, or that are approved for use by the 

same, along with an administration date for each dose: 

 

1. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) COVID-19 

Vaccination Card issued to the vaccine recipient by the vaccination 

site, or an electronic or physical copy of the same; 

 

2. Official record from the New Jersey Immunization Information 

System (NJIIS) or other State immunization registry; 

 

3. A record from a health care provider’s portal/medical record 

system on official letterhead signed by a licensed physician, nurse 

practitioner, physician's assistant, registered nurse, or pharmacist; 

 

4. A military immunization or health record from the United States 

Armed Forces; or 

 

5. Docket mobile phone application record or any State specific 

application that produces a digital health record. 

 

The Board of Education’s collection of vaccination information from covered 

workers shall comport with all Federal and State laws, including, but not limited 

to, the Americans with Disabilities Act, that regulate the collection and storage of 

that information.   

 

To satisfy the testing requirement of Executive Order 253 and this Policy, an 

unvaccinated covered worker must undergo screening testing at a minimum of 

one to two times each week, to be determined by the Superintendent of Schools.   

 

An unvaccinated covered worker is required to submit proof of a COVID-19 test.  

The unvaccinated covered worker may choose either antigen or molecular tests 

that have EUA by the FDA or are operating per the Laboratory Developed Test 

requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.   

 

Where a Board of Education provides the unvaccinated covered worker with     

on-site COVID-19 test(s), the school district may similarly elect to administer or 

provide access to either an antigen or molecular test.  

  



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

1648.13/page 3 of 3 

School Employee Vaccination Requirements 

 

 

If the covered worker is not working on-site in the school district during a week 

when testing would otherwise be required, the Superintendent or designee may 

not require the worker to submit to testing for that week.  This requirement shall 

not supplant any requirement imposed by the Board of Education regarding 

diagnostic testing of symptomatic workers or screening testing of vaccinated 

workers. 

 

The Board of Education shall track test results required by Executive Order 253 

and must report those results to the local public health department. 

 

Nothing in Executive Order 253 and this Policy shall prevent a Board of 

Education from revising this Policy to include additional or stricter requirements, 

as long as such revisions comport with the minimum requirements of Executive 

Order 253.  

 

Executive Order 253 authorizes the Commissioner of the Department of Health 

(DOH) to issue a directive supplementing the requirements outlined in Executive 

Order 253, which may include, but not be limited to, any requirements for 

reporting vaccination and testing data to the DOH.  Actions taken by the 

Commissioner of the DOH pursuant to Executive Order 253 shall not be subject 

to the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1        

et seq. 

 

This Policy shall be supplemented by Policy 1648.11 – Appendix A, which shall 

include the school district’s protocols implementing the provisions of this Policy. 

 

The Superintendent is authorized to implement revisions to provisions in this 

Policy based on any subsequent Executive Orders or any additional mandates that 

affect any provisions of this Policy.  Any such revisions in this Policy shall be 

submitted by the Superintendent to the Board of Education for ratification if the 

Board cannot approve such revisions before the effective date.  

 

 

Executive Order 253 – August 23, 2021 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2422/page 1 of 5 

Comprehensive Health and Physical Education 

Aug 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 208, 217, 219, and 224] 

 

2422  COMPREHENSIVE HEALTH AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

 

The Board of Education requires all students to participate in a comprehensive, 

sequential, health and physical education program aligned with the New Jersey 

Student Learning Standards (NJSLS) that emphasizes the natural interdisciplinary 

connection between wellness and health and physical education.  The primary 

focus of the NJSLS is the development of knowledge and skills that influence 

healthy behaviors within the context of self, family, school, and the local and 

global community.   

 

The curriculum requirements listed below address the need for students to 

gain knowledge and skill in caring for themselves, interacting effectively with 

others, and analyzing the impact of choices and consequences.  The primary 

focus of the curriculum listed below is to help students develop concepts and 

skills that promote and influence healthy behaviors.   

 

The NJSLS incorporate New Jersey statutes related to health and well-being of 

students in New Jersey schools.  The following statutes incorporated into the 

NJSLS include, but are not limited to, the following requirements: 

 

1. Accident and Fire Prevention (N.J.S.A. 18A:6-2) requires regular 

courses of instruction in accident and fire prevention. 

 

2. Breast Self-Examination (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-5.4) requires offering 

instruction on breast self-examination for students in grades seven 

through twelve. 

 

3. Bullying Prevention Programs (N.J.S.A. 18A:37-17) requires the 

establishment of bullying prevention programs. 

 

4. Cancer Awareness (N.J.S.A. 18A:40-33) requires the development 

of a school program on cancer awareness by the Commissioner of 

Education. 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2422/page 2 of 5 

Comprehensive Health and Physical Education 

 

 

5. Dating Violence Education (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.23a) requires 

instruction regarding dating violence in grades seven through 

twelve. 

 

6. Domestic Violence Education (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.23) allows 

instruction on problems related to domestic violence and child 

abuse. 

 

7. Gang Violence Prevention (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.26) requires 

instruction in gang violence prevention for elementary school 

students. 

 

8. Health, Safety, and Physical Education (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-5) 

requires that all students in grades one through twelve participate 

in at least two and one-half hours of health, safety, and physical 

education each school week. 

 

9. Drugs, Alcohol, Tobacco, Controlled Dangerous Substances, and 

Anabolic Steroids (N.J.S.A. 18A:40A-1) requires instructional 

programs on drugs, alcohol, anabolic steroids, tobacco, and 

controlled dangerous substances and the development of 

curriculum guidelines for each grade Kindergarten through twelve. 

 

10. Lyme Disease Prevention (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-5.1 through 5.3) 

requires the development of Lyme Disease curriculum guidelines 

and training to all teaching staff members who instruct students 

with Lyme Disease. 

 

11. Organ Donation (N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-4.3) requires information 

relative to organ donation to be given to students in grades nine 

through twelve. 

 

12. Sexual Assault Prevention (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.3) requires the 

development of a sexual assault prevention education program by 

the Commissioner of Education for utilization by school districts. 

 

13. Stress Abstinence (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.19 through N.J.S.A. 

18A:35-4.22), also known as the “AIDS Prevention Act of 1999,” 

requires sex education programs to stress abstinence. 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2422/page 3 of 5 

Comprehensive Health and Physical Education 

 

 

14. Suicide Prevention (N.J.S.A. 18A:6-111 through 113) requires 

instruction in suicide prevention in public schools. 

 

15. Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)/Automated External 

Defibrillator (AED)  (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.28 and 18A:35-4.29) 

requires public high schools and charter schools to provide 

instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation and the use of an 

automated external defibrillator to each student prior to graduation. 
 

16. Sexually Explicit Images through Electronic Means (N.J.S.A. 

18A:35-4.32 and 4.33) requires instruction, once during middle 

school, on the social, emotional, and legal consequences of 

distributing and soliciting sexually explicit images through 

electronic means. 

 

17. History of Disabled and LGBT Persons (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.35 and 

4.36) requires instruction on the political, economic, and social 

contributions of persons with disabilities and lesbian, gay, 

bisexual, and transgender people for middle and high school 

students. 

 

18. Financial Literacy (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.34) requires instruction with 

basic financial literacy necessary for sound financial decision-

making in each of the grades six through eight.   

 

19. Sexual Abuse and Assault Awareness and Prevention 

Education (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.5a) requires age-appropriate 

sexual abuse and assault awareness and prevention education 

in grades preschool through twelve.  

 

20. Curriculum to Include Instruction on Diversity and Inclusion 

(N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.36a) requires instruction on diversity and 

inclusion in an appropriate place in the curriculum for 

students in grades Kindergarten through twelve.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2422/page 4 of 5 

Comprehensive Health and Physical Education 

 

 

21. Incorporation of Age-Appropriate Instruction Relative to 

Consent for Physical Contact and Sexual Activity (N.J.S.A. 

18A:35-4.38) requires age-appropriate instruction in grades six 

through twelve on the law and meaning of consent for physical 

contact and sexual activity.   

 

22. Health Curriculum to Include Instruction on Mental Health 

(N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.39) requires health education programs to 

include instruction on mental health and the relation of 

physical and mental health for students in grades 

Kindergarten through twelve. 

 

23. Information About “New Jersey Safe Haven Infant Protection 

Act” Included in Public School Curriculum (N.J.S.A.    

18A:35-4.40) information on the provisions of the “New Jersey 

Safe Haven Infant Protection Act” shall be included in 

curriculum for public school students in grades nine through 

twelve.   

 

24. Infusion of African American Accomplishments into School 

Curricula (N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.43) requires in the curriculum 

for all elementary and secondary students instruction that 

infuses into all courses on the United States the centuries of 

accomplishments by African Americans in the building and 

development of America.   

 

2519. Other Statutory or Administrative Codes.  The Board will 

incorporate into its health and physical education curriculum any 

other requirements of the NJSLS in Comprehensive Health and 

Physical Education. 
 

In accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.7, any student whose 

parent presents to the Principal a signed statement that any part of the instruction 

in health, family life education, or sex education is in conflict with his/her 

conscience or sincerely held moral or religious beliefs shall be excused from that 

portion of the course where such instruction is being given and no penalties as to 

credit or graduation shall result. 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2422/page 5 of 5 

Comprehensive Health and Physical Education 

 

 

The Board of Education must provide two and one-half hours of health, safety, 

and physical education courses in each school week, or proportionately less when 

holidays fall within the week.  Recess period(s) shall not be used to meet the 

requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:35-5, 7, and 8.  
 

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.31, the Board of Education shall provide a 

daily recess period of at least twenty minutes for students in grades Kindergarten 

through five.  A recess period is not required on a school day in which the day is 

substantially shortened due to a delayed opening or early dismissal.  The recess 

period shall be outdoors, if feasible.  A student shall not be denied recess for any 

reason, except as a consequence of a violation of the school district’s Code of 

Student Conduct, including a harassment, intimidation, or bullying (HIB) 

investigation pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-13 et seq.  Students may not be denied 

recess more than twice per week for a violation of the Code of Student Conduct or 

HIB investigation and these students shall be provided restorative justice activities 

during the recess period.   

 

Restorative justice activities are defined as activities designed to improve the 

socioemotional and behavioral responses of students through the use of more 

appropriate and less punitive interventions thereby establishing a more supportive 

and inclusive school culture.  The student’s recess period should be scheduled in a 

manner that does not interfere with the implementation of a student’s 

Individualized Education Program (IEP).  School staff may deny recess for a 

student on the advice of a medical professional, school nurse, or the provisions of 

a student’s IEP and/or 504 Plan. 

 

A copy of the NJSLS for Comprehensive Health and Physical Education and all 

related curriculum/course guides and instructional material shall be available for 

public inspection in each school.  

 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:35-4.31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2425/page 1 of 4 

Emergency Virtual or Remote  

Instruction Program 

Oct 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT No. 225] 
 

2425  EMERGENCY VIRTUAL OR REMOTE 

         INSTRUCTION PROGRAM 
 

The Board of Education is committed to providing a high quality educational 

program, virtually or remotely, in the event a school or the schools of the district 

are required to close for more than three consecutive school days due to a 

declared state of emergency, declared public health emergency, or a directive by 

the appropriate health agency or officer to institute a public health-related closure.  

The district’s virtual or remote program of instruction shall be in accordance with 

N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.   
 

In the event the school district is required to close a school or the schools of the 

district for more than three consecutive school days due to a declared state of 

emergency, declared public health emergency, or a directive by the appropriate 

health agency or officer to institute a public health-related closure, the 

Commissioner of Education shall allow the district to apply to the 180-day 

requirement established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9, one or more days of 

virtual or remote instruction provided to students on the day or days the schools of 

the district were closed if the program of virtual or remote instruction meets such 

criteria as may be established by the Commissioner Education.  
 

The Superintendent of Schools shall submit, with Board approval, the school 

district’s program of virtual or remote instruction to the Commissioner of 

Education by no later than October 29, 2021 and annually thereafter.  
 

A day of virtual or remote instruction, if instituted under the district’s 

Commissioner of Education’s approved program of virtual or remote instruction, 

shall be considered the equivalent of a full day of school attendance for the 

purposes of meeting State and local graduation requirements, the awarding of 

course credit, and other such matters as determined by the Commissioner of 

Education. 
 

Any district program of virtual or remote instruction implemented for the general 

education students shall provide the same educational opportunities to students 

with disabilities.  Special education and related services, including speech 

language services, counseling services, physical therapy, occupational therapy, 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2425/page 2 of 4 

Emergency Virtual or Remote  

Instruction Program 

 

 

and behavioral services, may be delivered to students with disabilities through the 

use of electronic communication or a virtual or online platform and as required by 

the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP), to the greatest extent 

practicable. 

 

In the event the State or local health department determines it is advisable to close 

or mandates closure of the schools of the district due to a declared state of 

emergency, declared public health emergency, or a directive by the appropriate 

health agency or officer to institute a public health-related closure, the 

Superintendent shall have the authority to implement the school district’s program 

of virtual or remote instruction.  The Superintendent shall consult with the Board 

prior to such decision, if practicable.  The Superintendent shall ensure that 

students, parents, staff, and the Board are informed promptly of the 

Superintendent’s decision. 

 

Nothing in N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9 and this Policy shall be construed to limit, 

supersede or preempt rights, privileges, compensation, remedies, and procedures 

afforded to public employees or a collective bargaining unit under Federal or 

State law or any provision of a collective bargaining agreement entered into by 

the school district. 

 

In the event of the closure of a school or the schools of the district due to a 

declared state of emergency, declared public health emergency, or a directive by 

the appropriate health agency or officer to institute a public health-related closure 

for a period longer than three consecutive school days: 

 

1. District employees shall be entitled to compensation, benefits, and 

emoluments pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.e.(1) 

and (2). 

 

2. The district shall continue to make payments of benefits, 

compensation, and emoluments pursuant to the terms of a contract 

with a contracted service provider in effect on the date of the 

closure as if the services for such benefits, compensation, and 

emoluments had been provided, and as if the school facilities had 

remained open pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A.          

18A:7F-9.e.(3). 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2425/page 3 of 4 

Emergency Virtual or Remote  

Instruction Program 

 

 

3. The district shall be obligated to make payments for benefits, 

compensation, and emoluments and all payments required pursuant 

to N.J.S.A. 18A:6-51 et seq., to an educational services 

commission, county special services school district, and a jointure 

commission, and under any shared services agreement and 

cooperative contract entered into with any other public entity 

pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.e.(4). 

 

4. An educational services commission, county special services 

school district, and a jointure commission shall continue to make 

payments of benefits, compensation, and emoluments pursuant to 

the terms of a contract with a contracted service provider or a 

shared services agreement in effect on the date of the closure as if 

the services for such benefits, compensation, and emoluments had 

been provided, and as if the school facilities had remained open 

pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.e.(4). 

 

The provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.e.(1) through (4) shall not apply to any 

employee whose weekly hours of work are reduced, and to whom unemployment 

benefits are provided, pursuant to a shared work program approved pursuant to 

the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:21-20.3 et seq.  A contracted service provider, 

educational services commission, county special services school district, or 

jointure commission shall notify the district with which it has entered into a 

contract to provide services of its intent to reduce the hours of work of its 

employees pursuant to a shared work program approved pursuant to the 

provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:21-20.3 et seq.   

 

1. Notwithstanding the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.e.(3), if a 

contracted service provider reduces the amount that it pays to its 

employees providing services to a school district, and that 

reduction is the result of a reduction of workhours of those 

employees made pursuant to a shared work program approved 

pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:21-20.3 et seq., then the 

amount paid by the district to the contracted service provider shall 

be reduced by the same amount.  

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2425/page 4 of 4 

Emergency Virtual or Remote  

Instruction Program 

 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.e.(4), if an 

educational services commission, county special services school 

district, or jointure commission reduces the amount that it pays to 

its employees providing services to a school district, and that 

reduction is the result of a reduction of workhours of those 

employees made pursuant to a shared work program approved 

pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:21-20.3 et seq., then the 

amount paid by the district to the educational services commission, 

county special services school district, or jointure commission 

shall be reduced by the same amount. 

 

This Policy may be revised as necessary by the Superintendent in accordance with 

N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9.  The school district’s emergency virtual or remote instruction 

program shall be available on the school district’s website.   
 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2467/page 1 of 4 

Surrogate Parents and Resource  

Family Foster Parents 

Aug 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 185, 211, and 224] 

 

2467  SURROGATE PARENTS AND RESOURCE  

FAMILY FOSTER PARENTS 

 

Federal and State laws require the Board ensure the rights of a student are 

protected through the provision of an individual to act as surrogate for the parent 

and assume all parental rights under N.J.A.C. 6A:14-2.2 when:  

 

1. The parent, as defined according to N.J.A.C. 6A:14-1.3, cannot be 

identified; 

 

2. The parent cannot be located after reasonable efforts; 

 

3. An agency of the State of New Jersey has guardianship of the 

student or the student is determined a ward of the State and, if 

the student is placed with a resource family parent, the 

resource family parent declines to serve as the student’s 

parent; and that agency has not taken steps to appoint a surrogate 

parent for the student; or 

 

4. The student is a ward of the State and no State agency has taken 

steps to appoint a surrogate parent for the student; 

 

5. No parent can be identified for the student in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 6A:14-1.3 except a foster parent, the foster parent does 

not agree to serve as the student’s parent, and no State agency has 

taken steps to appoint a surrogate parent for the student; and 

 

46. The student is an unaccompanied homeless youth as that term is 

defined in section 725(6) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless 

Assistance Act (42 USC §11434.(a)6) and N.J.A.C. 6A:17-1.2 
and no State agency has taken steps to appoint a surrogate parent 

for the student. 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2467/page 2 of 4 

Surrogate Parents and Resource  

Family Foster Parents 

 

Qualifications and Selection 

 

The district shall will make reasonable efforts to appoint a surrogate parent within 

thirty days of the it’s determination that a surrogate parent is needed required for 

a student.  If the district fails to appoint a surrogate parent for a ward of the State, 

a judge may appoint a surrogate parent if the judge determines a surrogate parent 

is necessary for such student. 
 

The district shall establish a method for selecting and training surrogate 

parents.   
 

The person serving as a surrogate parent shall: 
 

1. Have no interest that conflicts with the interest those of the 

student they he/she represents; 
 

2. Possess knowledge and skills that ensure adequate representation 

of the student; 
 

3. Not be replaced without cause; 
 

4. Be at least eighteen years of age; and 
 

5. Complete Have a criminal history review pursuant to in 

accordance with N.J.S.A.  18A:6-7.1 if the person completed prior 

to his or her serving as the surrogate parent, if the school district is 

compensated. compensates the surrogate parent for such services; 

and  

 

6. Not be an employee of the New Jersey Department of Education, 

this district, or a public or nonpublic agency that is involved in the 

education or care of the child.   

 

The person(s) serving as a surrogate parent may not Not be an employee of 

the New Jersey Department of Education, this district, or a public or nonpublic 

agency that is involved in the education or care of the child.   

 

[Optional - A surrogate parent will may be paid solely to act in this capacity.] 
 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2467/page 3 of 4 

Surrogate Parents and Resource  

Family Foster Parents 
 

 

The Director of Student Services shall serve as Surrogate Parent Coordinator and 

will:  determine whether there is a need for a surrogate parent for a student; 

contact any State agency that is involved with the student to determine whether 

the State has a surrogate parent appointed for the student; and make reasonable 

efforts to appoint a surrogate parent for the student within thirty days of 

determining that there is a need for a surrogate parent for the student. 
 

When a student (who is or may be a student with a disability) is in the care of a 

resource family foster parent, and the resource family foster parent is not the 

parent of the student as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:14-1.3, the district where the 

resource family foster parent resides shall contact the student’s case manager at 

the Division of Child Protection and Permanency (DCP&P) in the Department of 

Children and Families to determine whether the parent retains the right to make 

educational decisions and determine the whereabouts of the parent. 
 

If the parent retains the right to make educational decisions and the parent’s 

whereabouts are known to the school district, the Superintendent or designee 

Surrogate Parent Coordinator shall obtain all required consent from, and provide 

written notices to, the parent. 
 

If the district cannot ascertain the whereabouts of the parent, the resource family 

foster parent, unless that person is unwilling to do so, shall serve as the parent 

unless that person is unwilling to do so pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:14-1.3.  If there 

is no resource family foster parent, or if the resource family foster parent is 

unwilling to serve as the student’s parent, the Surrogate Parent Coordinator shall 

consult with the student’s case manager at DCP&P to assist in identifying an 

individual to serve as a surrogate parent, and appointing a surrogate parent, and 

obtaining all required consent from, and providinge written notices to, the 

surrogate parent. 
 

Training 
 

N.J.A.C 6A:14-2.2(d) requires the district train surrogate parents so they have the 

knowledge and skills that ensure adequate representation of the student.  The 

Surrogate Parent Coordinator shall coordinate the training for surrogate parents.  

The training may will include, but not be limited to: 
 

1. Providing the surrogate parent a copy of: 
 

a. Parental Rights in Special Education booklet; 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROGRAM 

2467/page 4 of 4 

Surrogate Parents and Resource  

Family Foster Parents 

 

b. N.J.A.C. 6A:14; 
 

c. The Special Education Process; 

 

d. Administrative Code Training Materials from the 

Department of Education website; and 
 

e. Other relevant materials. 
 

2. Providing the surrogate parent an opportunity to meet with the 

Surrogate Parent Coordinator to discuss the rights of the surrogate 

parent and the applicable statutes, administrative codes, and 

Federal laws.  The Surrogate Parent Coordinator shall provide the 

surrogate parent the opportunity to review and to become familiar 

with the State and Federal requirements for assessment, 

individualized   educational  program  development,  and   parental 

rights with respect to the referral and placement process, including 

their rights with respect to seeking a due process hearing if they 

disagree with the local procedure or decisions;  
 

3. Providing the surrogate parent adequate time to become familiar 

with the student and the nature of the student’s disability through a 

review of the student’s record; 
 

4. Providing the surrogate parent an opportunity to confer with the 

student’s case manager to discuss the student; and 
 

5. Other information and resources to provide the surrogate parent the 

knowledge and skills to ensure adequate representation of the 

student. 

 

Rights of the Surrogate Parent 

 

A surrogate parent appointed in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:14-2.2 shall assume 

all parental rights under N.J.A.C. 6A:14. 

 

 

N.J.A.C. 6A:14-2.2 
 

 

Adopted: 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

3224/page 1 of 2 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

May 21 

M 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 201, 207, 212 and 223] 
 

3224  EVALUATION OF PRINCIPALS, VICE PRINCIPALS, AND  

       ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 

 

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of Principal, Vice Principal, 

and Assistant Principal effectiveness to further the development of a professional 

corps of educators and to increase student achievement.  The Board of Education 

adopts Policy and Regulation 3224 for the evaluation of Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals consistent with the Teacher Effectiveness and 

Accountability for the Children of New Jersey Act (TEACHNJ) and the 

AchieveNJ administrative codes.  This Policy and Regulation provides the 

provisions and requirements for Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal 

evaluations consistent with TEACHNJ and AchieveNJ. 

 

The rules in N.J.A.C. 6A:10 – Educator Effectiveness shall not override any 

conflicting provision(s) of collective bargaining agreements or other employment 

contracts in effect on July 1, 2013 and nNo collective bargaining agreement 

entered into after July 1, 2013, shall conflict with the educator evaluation system 

established pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.1 et seq. or any other specific statute or 

regulation, nor shall topics subject to bargaining involve matters of educational 

policy or managerial prerogatives.  All information contained in annual 

performance reports and all information collected, compiled, and/or maintained 

by employees for the purpose of conducting the educator evaluation process 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.1 et seq., including, but not limited to, digital 

records, shall be confidential and shall not be subject to public inspection or 

copying pursuant to the Open Public Records Act, N.J.S.A. 47:1A-1 et seq.   

  

The Board shall annually adopt evaluation rubrics for all Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals which shall be submitted to the Commissioner 

of Education by August June 1 for approval by August 15 1 of each year.  The 

evaluation rubrics shall have four defined annual ratings:  ineffective, partially 

effective, effective, and highly effective.  The Board shall meet the requirements 

as outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.2(a) for the annual evaluation of Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals and shall ensure the training procedures as 

outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.2(b) are followed when implementing the evaluation 

rubrics for all Principals, Vice Principals, or Assistant Principals.  A District 

Evaluation Advisory Committee may shall be established in accordance with the 

requirements of N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.3. 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

3224/page 2 of 2 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

The minimum requirements for the evaluation procedures for Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals as outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.4 shall be 

followed.  For each Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal rated 

ineffective or partially effective on the annual summative evaluation rating, as 

measured by the evaluation rubrics, a corrective action plan shall be developed in 

accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.5. 

 

The components of the principal evaluation rubrics as described in N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-5.1 shall apply to Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals.  

Measures of student achievement, as outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.2, shall be used 

to determine impact on student learning.  Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant 

Principal observations shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4.  The Superintendent or designated supervisor shall conduct 

observations for the evaluation of Principals pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:6-121 and 

he or she shall be trained pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.2(b).  A Principal, or the 

Superintendent or designated supervisor, shall conduct observations for the 

evaluation of Vice Principals and Assistant Principals pursuant to N.J.S.A.  

18A:6-121. 

 

The principal practice instrument approved by the Department of Education shall 

meet the criteria as outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-7.3. 

 

The Superintendent annually shall notify all Principals, Vice Principals, or 

Assistant Principals of the adopted evaluation policies and procedures/regulations 

no later than October 1.  If a Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal is 

hired after October 1, the Superintendent shall notify the Principal, Vice Principal, 

or Assistant Principal of the policies and procedures/regulations at the beginning 

of his or her employment.  All Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant 

Principals shall be notified of amendments to the policy and 

procedures/regulations within ten Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal 

working days of adoption. 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-117 et seq. 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.1 through 1.4; 6A:10-2.1 through 2.5 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.1 through 5.4 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-7.1 and 7.3 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

5116/page 1 of 3 

Education of Homeless Children 

Aug 21 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 210, 211, and 224] 

 

5116  EDUCATION OF HOMELESS CHILDREN 

 

The Board of Education will admit and enroll homeless children in accordance 

with Federal and State laws and New Jersey Administrative Code.  The Board of 

Education adopts this Policy to be in compliance with law and administrative 

code to ensure the enrollment of homeless children in school and to respond to 

appeals made by parents or other parties related to the enrollment of homeless 

children. 

 

The Board of Education shall determine that a child is homeless when he or she 

resides in a publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary 

living accommodations, including:  hotels or motels; congregate shelters, 

including domestic violence and runaway shelters; transitional housing; and 

homes for adolescent mothers.  A child is also determined homeless when he or 

she resides in a public or private place not designated for or ordinarily used as a 

regular sleeping accommodation, including:  cars or other vehicles including 

mobile homes; tents or other temporary shelters; parks; abandoned buildings; bus 

or train stations; temporary shelters provided to migrant workers and their 

children on farm sites; and the residence of relatives or friends where the 

homeless child resides out of necessity because his or her family lacks a regular or 

permanent residence of its own.  A child is also determined homeless when he or 

she resides in substandard housing. 

 

The school district of residence for a homeless child is responsible for the 

education of the child and shall assume all responsibilities as required in N.J.A.C. 

6A:17-2.3.  The school district of residence for a homeless child means the school 

district in which the parent of a homeless child resided prior to becoming 

homeless. 

 

The school district liaison designated by the Superintendent of Schools for the 

education of homeless children is the Director of Student Services.  The liaison 

will facilitate communication and cooperation between the school district of 

residence and the school district where the homeless child resides and shall 

assume all responsibilities as outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.4(a). 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

5116/page 2 of 3 

Education of Homeless Children 

 

 

When a homeless child resides in a school district, the school district liaison shall 

notify the liaison of the school district of residence within twenty-four hours of 

receiving notification from the parent, the Department of Human Services or the 

Department of Children and Families, a shelter director, an involved agency, or a 

case manager.  Upon notification of the need for enrollment of a homeless child, 

the liaison in the school district of residence shall coordinate enrollment 

procedures immediately based upon the best interest of the child pursuant to 

N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.5(b). 

 

The Superintendent of the school district of residence or designee shall decide in 

which school district the homeless child shall be enrolled in accordance with the 

provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.5. 

 

Unless parental rights have been terminated by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

the parent retains all rights under N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.1 et seq. 

 

When a dispute occurs regarding the determination of homelessness or the 

determination of the school district of enrollment made by the school district of 

residence, the Superintendent(s) or the designee(s) of the involved district(s) or 

the child’s parent(s) shall immediately notify the Executive County 

Superintendent of Schools, who, in consultation with the Department of 

Education’s McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Coordinator or designee, shall 

immediately decide the child’s status.  If a dispute remains between the parent and 

the involved school district(s) following the Executive County Superintendent’s 

determination, the parent or the involved district Board(s) of Education may 

appeal to the Commissioner of Education for determination pursuant to N.J.A.C. 

6A:3, Controversies and Disputes. 

 

When a school district designated as the school district of residence disputes its 

designation as the school district of residence, or where no designation can be 

agreed upon by the involved school districts, the Superintendent(s) or designee(s) 

of the involved school districts shall immediately notify the Executive County 

Superintendent of Schools, who shall immediately make a determination, if 

possible, but no later than within forty-eight hours. 

 

If the dispute regarding determination of district of residence does not involve the 

determination of homelessness and/or district enrollment, the school district 

disputing the Executive County Superintendent’s determination may appeal to the 

Department  of  Education pursuant to  N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-19.2(d), (e), and (f)  and  

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

5116/page 3 of 3 

Education of Homeless Children 

 

 

request a determination from the Division of Administration and Finance.  If an 

appeal of a determination of district of residence also includes an appeal of the 

determination of homelessness and/or school district of enrollment, the appeal 

shall be submitted to the Commissioner of Education pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:3, 

Controversies and Disputes. 

 

Any dispute or appeal shall not delay the homeless child’s immediate enrollment 

or continued enrollment in the school district.  The homeless child shall be 

enrolled in the school district in which enrollment or continued enrollment is 

sought by the parent, pending resolution of the dispute or appeal.  Disputes and 

appeals involving the services provided to a homeless child with a disability shall 

be made pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:14. 

 

Financial responsibility, including the payment of tuition for the homeless child, 

will be in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.8.  The school district of residence 

shall list the child on its annual Application for State School Aid (ASSA) 

pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-33 until the parent establishes a permanent residence 

or is deemed domiciled in another jurisdiction pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:38-1.d.  

At that time, the school district of residence shall no longer list the student on its 

ASSA.  The State shall assume fiscal responsibility for the tuition of the child 

pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:7B-12.1 and shall pay the tuition to the school district in 

which the child is currently enrolled until the parent establishes a permanent 

residence or is deemed domiciled in another jurisdiction pursuant to N.J.S.A. 

18A:38-1.d. under the circumstances outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.8(c). 

 

On or before December 31 of each year, the district shall report to the Office 

of Homelessness Prevention in the Department of Community Affairs an 

accounting of each instance in which the district is made aware that a student 

enrolled in the district because the student’s parent moved to the district as a 

result of being homeless.  

 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:7B-12; 18A:7B-12.1; 18A:38-1 

N.J.A.C. 6A:17-2.1 et seq. 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

5751/page 1 of 3 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

Oct 21 

M 
 

[See POLICY ALERT No. 225] 
 

5751  SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF STUDENTS 
 

The Board of Education will not tolerate sexual harassment of students by school 

employees, other students, or third parties.  Sexual harassment of students is a 

form of prohibited sex discrimination. In accordance with Title IX of the 

Education Amendments of 1972 and the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR),     

34 CFR §106, the school district adopts this Policy and implement practices to 

investigate and resolve allegations of sexual harassment of students engaged in by 

school employees, other students, or third parties pursuant to 34 CFR §106.3(c).  

In addition, reports of sexual harassment shall also be investigated in accordance 

with the requirements of New Jersey’s Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act and 

Policy 5512.   
 

For the purposes of Policy 5751 and in accordance with 34 CFR §106: 
 

1. “Sexual harassment” (34 CFR §106.30(a)) means conduct on the 

basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:  
 

a. An employee of the school district conditioning the 

provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the school district 

on a student’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;  
 

b. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to 

be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it 

effectively denies a student equal access to the school 

district’s education program or activity; or 
 

c. “Sexual assault” as defined in 20 U.S.C. §1092(f)(6)(A)(v), 

“dating violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C. §12291(a)(10), 

“domestic violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C. §12291(a)(8), 

or “stalking” as defined in 34 U.S.C. §12291(a)(30).  
 

Sexual harassment may take place electronically or on an online platform used by 

the school, including, but not limited to, computer and internet networks; digital 

platforms; and computer hardware or software owned or operated by, or used in 

the operations of the school.  
 

In accordance with 34 CFR §106.8(a), any person may report sex discrimination, 

including sexual harassment using the contact information listed for the Title IX 

Coordinator, or by any other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator 

receiving the person’s verbal or written report.   



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

5751/page 2 of 3 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

A school district with “actual knowledge” of sexual harassment in the educational 

program or activity of the school district against a student, must respond promptly 

in a manner that is not “deliberately indifferent”. 

 

Any school employee who receives a complaint of sexual harassment or is aware 

of behavior that could constitute sexual harassment is required to report that 

information to the Title IX Coordinator in accordance with the provisions of      

34 CFR §106.8(a) and B.1. of Regulation 5751.  The district must report any 

potential child abuse in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:36-24; N.J.S.A.      

18A:36-25; N.J.A.C. 6A:16-11.1; and Policy and Regulation 8462.  

 

The Title IX Coordinator shall notify persons entitled to a notification pursuant to 

34 CFR §106.8(a)(1) that the school district does not discriminate on the basis of 

sex in the education program or activity that it operates, and that it is required by 

Title IX and Policy and Regulation 5751 not to discriminate in such a manner in 

accordance with 34 CFR §106.8(b)(1).  

 

The Title IX Coordinator shall prominently display the contact information 

required to be listed for the Title IX Coordinator pursuant to                                  

34 CFR §106.8(b)(2)(i) on the school district’s website and in each handbook or 

catalog the school district makes available to persons entitled to a notification in 

accordance with 34 CFR §106.8(a).  Policy and Regulation 5751 shall be 

prominently displayed on the district’s website and accessible to anyone.   

 

Supportive measures shall be available to the Complainant, Respondent, and as 

appropriate, witnesses or other impacted individuals.   

 

The school district shall use the grievance process outlined in 34 CFR §106.45 

and Regulation 5751 to address formal complaints of sexual harassment.  The 

school district shall offer both parties an appeal process as outlined in 34 CFR 

§106.45 and Regulation 5751 from a determination regarding responsibility for 

sexual harassment and from the Title IX Coordinator’s dismissal of a formal 

complaint or any allegations of sexual harassment. 

 

The Title IX Coordinator shall be responsible for effective implementation of any 

remedies in accordance with 34 CFR §106.45(b)(7)(iv).  The appropriate school 

official designated by the Superintendent, after consultation with the Title IX 

Coordinator, will determine sanctions imposed and remedies provided, if any. 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

5751/page 3 of 3 

Sexual Harassment of Students 
 

 

Consistent with the laws of New Jersey a student’s parent must be permitted to 

exercise the rights granted to their child under this Policy, whether such rights 

involve requesting supportive measures, filing a formal complaint, or 

participating in a grievance process.   

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that Title IX Coordinators, 

investigators, decision-makers, appeal officer, and any person who facilitates an 

informal resolution process, receive training in accordance with                           

34 CFR §106.45(b)(1)(iii). 

 

The school district or any employee of the school district shall not intimidate, 

threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for the purpose of 

interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or Policy 5751, or 

because the individual has made a report or complaint, testified, assisted, or 

participated or refused to participate in any manner in an investigation, 

proceeding, or hearing under this Policy, in accordance with 34 CFR §106.71(a). 

 

For each school district response to sexual harassment required under 34 CFR 

§106.44, the school district shall create and maintain for a period of seven years, 

records in accordance with 34 CFR §106.45(b)(10).   

 

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the Board Attorney to ensure 

the school district’s response to allegations of sexual harassment and the school 

district’s grievance process are in accordance with 34 CFR §106.44 and              

34 CFR §106.45. 

 

Any time a report is made to the Title IX Coordinator or formal complaint is filed 

pursuant to this Policy and in accordance with 34 CFR §106, the Title IX 

Coordinator shall forward the report or complaint to the Principal of the school 

building attended by the alleged victim for the Principal to follow the 

requirements of New Jersey’s Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act and Policy 5512.    

 

 

34 CFR §106 

United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights – Questions and 

  Answers on the Title IX Regulations on Sexual Harassment (July 20, 2021) 

 

 

 

Adopted: 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

7432/page 1 of 3 

Eye Protection 

Aug 21 

M 

 [See POLICY ALERT Nos. 168 and 224] 

 

7432  EYE PROTECTION 
 

The Board of Education requires each student, staff member, and school 

visitor, including individuals present for evening adult-school programs, to 

wear appropriate eye protective devices while participating in educational 

activities and programs as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:7-1.3.  Appropriate eye 

protective devices must be worn by anyone engaged in a process or activity 

where exposure to which might have a tendency to cause damage to the eyes 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(a) and N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.1 directs the 

rigorous implementation and enforcement of eye safety practices for students, 

staff members, and visitors exposed to conditions potentially hazardous to the 

eyes in the instructional program of this district. 

 

The term “appropriate eye protective device” shall include plain or 

prescription lenses provided the lenses and other portions of the device meet 

or exceed the prescribed specifications for the device.  Specifications for 

appropriate eye protection for various activities shall meet or exceed 

standards described in the American National Standard Practice for 

Occupational and Educational Eye and Face Protection, ANSI Z87.1-1989;  

American National Standard Practice for the Safe Use of Lasers, ANSI 

Z136.1-1986, and eye protective procedures recommended by the 

manufacturer of the laser device.   
 

Optional 
 

[including the adult evening school program.] 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for the continual monitoring 

of the school program, including, but not limited to, all vocational education, 

industrial arts education, science education, technology education and arts 

education, for conditions under which students, staff members, or visitors are 

exposed to a process or activity that might have a tendency to cause damage to the 

eyes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

7432/page 2 of 3 

Eye Protection 

 

Each student, staff member, and visitor, exposed to a condition identified as 

hazardous to the eyes must wear an eye protective device appropriate to the 

activity and certified to meet the standards established by the State Board of 

Education, the American National Standard Practice for Occupational and 

Educational Eye and Face Protection, ANSI Z87.1-1979, and American National 

Standard Practice for the Safe Use of Lasers, ANSI Z136.1-1986 and the New 

Jersey Administrative Code.  The appropriate eye protective device shall be 

supplied by the Board, except that the student, staff member, or visitor,  including 

individuals present for evening adult-school programs, may wear personal eye 

wear that is appropriate to the activity and certified, in writing, by a licensed 

optician or other qualified licensed eye professional to meet or exceed those 

standards.  District-owned appropriate eye protective devices shall be inspected 

regularly by the appropriate staff member, and defective or poorly fitting devices 

shall be returned to the Principal for repair or discard.  Any shared appropriate 

eye protective devices shall be disinfected between uses by the method prescribed 

by the school medical inspector. 

  

Each classroom, shop, laboratory, and other area of the school in which students 

or staff members are exposed to caustic materials that can cause damage to the 

eyes shall be equipped with an emergency eye wash fountain in accordance with 

standards established by the New Jersey Department of Education. 

 

The Building Principal or designee shall ensure that each area in the school 

identified as housing an activity hazardous to the eyes shall be posted with 

conspicuous signs that warn participants that an appropriate eye protective device 

must be worn during the activity.  Staff members of such activities are responsible 

for instructing students in appropriate eye safety practices and for serving as 

exemplary models in the implementation of such practices.   

 

The Board authorizes each staff member responsible for an activity or process 

hazardous to the eyes to compile and maintain, for the duration of the course of 

study, a list of students in the course who wear contact lenses. 

 

A student who refuses or persistently neglects to wear an eye protective device 

when required to do so or fails to observe established eye safety practices shall be 

dismissed from the day’s class by his/her teacher.  Any such dismissal from class 

will be considered to be an absence, in accordance with Board policy on student 

attendance, and an accumulation of such absences may result in loss of course 

credit. 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

7432/page 3 of 3 

Eye Protection 

 

A staff member who refuses or persistently neglects to wear an eye protective 

device when required to do so or fails to observe established eye safety practices 

may be disciplined for insubordination for failing to obey the rules established by 

this Board.  The proper implementation of eye protection practices shall be a 

criterion in the evaluation of every staff member required to observe such 

practices. 

 

A visitor to the schools who refuses or persistently neglects to wear an eye 

protective device when required to do so or fails to observe established eye safety 

practices may be requested to leave the school premises. 

 

The school district Superintendent shall promulgate regulations to implement this 

policy that conform to rules of the State Board of Education and shall provide 

annual in-service training and appropriate supplies and equipment to all 

school personnel responsible for implementing the eye-safety policies and 

program.  The training shall cover all aspects of eye protection in schools as 

described in N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(a) through (f). staff members whose 

instructional duties include activities hazardous to the eyes.  The Superintendent 

shall report annually to the Board on the implementation of the eye protection 

program and the eye injuries, if any, occurring in the course of the instructional 

program. 

 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.1; 18A:40-12.2 

N.J.A.C. 6A:7-1.3 

N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5 

N.J.A.C. 6:53-5.1 [vocational districts] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8420/page 1 of 3 

Emergency and Crisis Situations 

Aug 21 

M 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 189, 191, 221, and 224] 
 

8420  EMERGENCY AND CRISIS SITUATIONS 
 

The Board of Education recognizes its responsibility to provide for the safety and 

security in each school building in the district.  The district will develop and 

implement comprehensive written plans, and procedures, and mechanisms to 

provide for the protection of health, safety, security, and welfare of the school 

population; the prevention of, intervention in, response to and recovery from 

emergency and crisis situations; the establishment and maintenance of a climate 

of civility; and supportive services for staff, students, and their families. 

 

“School security drill” means an exercise, other than a fire drill, to practice 

procedures that respond to an emergency situation including, but not limited 

to, a bomb threat, non-fire evacuation, lockdown, or active shooter situation 

and that is similar in duration to a fire drill.   
 

The Superintendent of Schools or designee shall consult with law enforcement 

agencies, health and social services provider agencies, emergency management 

planners, and school and community resources, as appropriate, in the 

development of the school district’s plans, procedures, and mechanisms for school 

safety and security.  The plans, procedures, and mechanisms shall be consistent 

with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1 and the format and content established 

by the Domestic Security Preparedness Task Force, pursuant to N.J.S.A. App. 

A:9-64 et seq., and the Commissioner of Education and shall be reviewed 

annually, and updated as appropriate. 
 

A copy of the school district’s school safety and security plan shall be 

disseminated to all school district employees.  New employees shall receive a 

copy of the school district’s safety and security plan, as appropriate, within sixty 

days of the effective date of their employment.  All employees shall be notified 

briefed in writing, as appropriate, regarding updates and changes to the school 

safety and security plan. 
 

The school district shall develop and provide an in-service training program for 

all school district employees to enable them to recognize and appropriately 

respond to safety and security concerns, including emergencies and crisesis, 

consistent with the school district’s plans, procedures, and mechanisms for school 

safety and security and the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1.  New employees 

shall receive this in-service training, as appropriate, within sixty days of the 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8420/page 2 of 3 

Emergency and Crisis Situations 

 

effective date of their employment.  This in-service training program shall be 

reviewed annually and updated, as appropriate. 
 

The Board shall ensure individuals employed in the district in a substitute 

capacity are provided with information and training on the district’s  

practices and procedures on school safety and security including instruction on 

school security drills, evacuation procedures, and emergency response protocols 

in the district and the school building where the individuals are employed in 

accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7.   
 

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1, at least one fire drill and one school 

security drill will be conducted each month within school hours, including any 

summer months, which the school is open for instructional programs.  A school 

security drill means an exercise, other than a fire drill, to practice procedures that 

respond to an emergency situation including, but not limited to, a non-fire 

evacuation, lockdown, bomb threat, or active shooter situation that is similar in 

duration to a fire drill.  Schools are required to hold a minimum of two active 

shooter, non-fire evacuation, bomb threat, and lockdown security drills annually.  

Fire alarm systems shall be initiated only during a fire drill evacuation.  

Responses made necessary by the unplanned activation of emergency procedures 

or by any other emergency shall not be substituted for a required school security 

drill. 

 

Every Principal of a school of two or more rooms, or of a school of one room, 

when located above the first story of a building, shall have at least one fire 

drill and one school security drill each month within the school hours, 

including any summer months during which the school is open for 

instructional programs, and shall require all teachers of all schools, whether 

occupying buildings of one or more stories, to keep all doors and exits of 

their respective rooms and buildings unlocked during the school hours, 

except during an emergency lockdown or an emergency lockdown drill. 

Where school buildings have been provided with fire escapes, they shall be 

used by a part or all of the students performing every fire drill.  An actual 

fire or school security emergency that occurs at a school during the month 

and that includes activities which are the equivalent of a drill shall be 

considered a drill for the purposes of meeting the requirements of N.J.S.A. 

18A:41-1.  
 

Every school in the district shall conduct a school security drill within the 

first fifteen days of the beginning of the school year. 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8420/page 3 of 3 

Emergency and Crisis Situations 

 

 

The Principal or designee will provide local law enforcement or other emergency 

responders, as appropriate, with a friendly notification at least forty-eight hours 

prior to holding a school security drill.  A law enforcement officer shall be 

present at a minimum of one school security drill in each school year in order 

to make recommendations on any improvements or changes to school 

security drill procedures that the officer may deem advisable in accordance 

with N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1 Although these outside agencies are not required to 

observe school security drills, the Principal is encouraged to invite representatives 

from local law enforcement and emergency responder agencies to attend and 

observe at least four different security drills annually. 

 

Such drills and in-service training programs shall be conducted in accordance 

with a building security drill guide and training materials that educate school 

employees on proper evacuation and lockdown procedures in a variety of 

emergency situations on school grounds in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1 

as provided by the New Jersey Office of Homeland Security and Preparedness. 

 

The school district will be required to annually submit a security drill statement of 

assurance to the New Jersey Department of Education by June 30 of each school 

year.  Each school in the district will be required to complete a security drill 

record form as required by the New Jersey Department of Education. 

 

N.J.S.A. 2C:33-3 

N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1 et seq.; 18A:41-2; 18A:41-6; 18A:41-7 

N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1; 6A:27-11.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8540/page 1 of 3 

School Nutrition Programs 

Aug 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 206 and 224] 

 

8540  SCHOOL NUTRITION PROGRAMS 

 

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of a child receiving a 

nutritious, well-balanced meal to promote sound eating habits, to foster good 

health and academic achievement, and to reinforce the nutrition education taught 

in the classroom.  Therefore, the Board of Education may participate in the school 

nutrition programs of the New Jersey Department of Agriculture in accordance 

with the eligibility criteria of the program.  These programs may include the 

National School Lunch Program, the School Breakfast Program, the After-School 

Snack Program, and the Special Milk Program. 

 

If seventy percent or more of the students enrolled in a school in the district 

on or before the last school day before October 16 of the preceding school 

year are eligible for free or reduced price meals under the National School 

Lunch Program or the Federal School Breakfast Program, the district shall 

establish a “Breakfast After the Bell” program for that school in accordance 

with N.J.S.A. 18A:33-11.1 et seq.  The district may request a waiver of the 

requirements of the “Breakfast After the Bell” program pursuant to N.J.S.A. 

18A:33-12.   

 

The Board of Education shall sign an Agreement with the Division of Food and 

Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture for 

every school nutrition program operated within the school district.  Any child 

nutrition program operated within the school district shall be operated in 

accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and all the requirements of the 

program. 

 

Students may be eligible for free or reduced pricing in accordance with the 

requirements of the program operating in the school district.  Prices charged to 

paying children shall be established by the Board of Education, but must be 

within the maximum prices established by the Division of Food and Nutrition, 

School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture.  Prices 

charged to adults shall be in accordance with the requirements of the program. 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8540/page 2 of 3 

School Nutrition Programs 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents of all children in the 

school district of the availability, eligibility requirements, and application 

procedures for free or reduced price meals or free milk in accordance with the 

notification requirements and procedures of the Division of Food and Nutrition, 

School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture. 

 

The Superintendent will designate in the annual notification to parents, the person 

who will determine, in accordance with standards issued by the Division of Food 

and Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture, 

a student’s eligibility for free or reduced price meals or free milk depending on 

the programs operated in the school district. 

 

A parent may request a household application and instructions from the Principal 

of their child’s school.  A household application must be completed before 

eligibility is determined.  Where necessary, the Principal or designee shall assist 

the applicant in the preparation of the household application. 

 

Applications shall be reviewed in a timely manner.  An eligibility determination 

will be made, the family will be notified of its status, and the status will be 

implemented as soon as possible within ten operating days of the receipt of the 

completed application.  Any student found eligible shall be offered free or 

reduced price meals or free milk immediately upon the establishment of his/her 

eligibility and shall continue to receive such meals during the pendency of any 

inquiry regarding his/her eligibility in accordance with the requirements of the 

Division of Food and Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey 

Department of Agriculture.  Carry-over of previous year’s eligibility for students 

shall be in accordance with the requirements of the Division of Food and 

Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture. 
 

A denial of eligibility for free or reduced price meals or free milk shall be in 

writing and shall include the reasons for which eligibility was denied, notice of 

the parent’s right to appeal the denial, the procedures for an appeal, and a 

statement reminding parents that they may reapply at any time during the school 

year.  Appeal procedures shall include:  a hearing, if requested by the parent, held 

with reasonable promptness and convenience of the parent before a hearing 

officer other than the school official who denied the application; the parent’s 

opportunity to be represented by counsel; a decision rendered promptly and in 

writing; and an opportunity to appeal the decision of the hearing officer to the 

School Business Administrator/Board Secretary.  The appeal hearing will be 

conducted in accordance with the provisions as outlined by the Division of Food 

and Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture. 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8540/page 3 of 3 

School Nutrition Programs 

 

There shall be no overt identification of any child(ren) who may be eligible to 

receive free or reduced price school meals or free milk.  The identity of students 

who receive free or reduced price meals will be protected.  Eligible students shall 

not be required to work in consideration for receiving such meals or milk.  

Eligible children shall not be required to use a separate dining area, go through a 

separate serving line, enter the dining area through a separate entrance, or 

consume their meals or milk at a different time.  A student’s eligibility status will 

not be disclosed at any point in the process of providing free or reduced price 

meals or free milk in accordance with the requirements of the Division of Food 

and Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture.  

 

The School Business Administrator/Board Secretary or designee will verify 

applications of those eligible for free or reduced price meals in accordance with 

the requirements of the, Division of Food and Nutrition, School Nutrition 

Programs, New Jersey Department of Agriculture.   

 

The Board of Education will comply with all the requirements of the Division of 

Food and Nutrition, School Nutrition Programs, New Jersey Department of 

Agriculture Local Education Agency (LEA) Agreement and all requirements 

outlined in the School Nutrition Electronic Application Reimbursement System 

(SNEARS). 

 

 

7 C.F.R. 210.1 et seq. 

N.J.S.A. 18A:33-5; 18A:33-11.1 et seq.; 18A:58-7.2 

N.J.A.C. 2:36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8550/page 1 of 4 

Unpaid Meal Charges/Outstanding  

Food Service Bill Charges 

Aug 21 

M 
 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 206, 208, 212, and 224] 
 

8550  UNPAID MEAL CHARGES/OUTSTANDING  

FOOD SERVICE BILL CHARGES 
 

The Board of Education shall establish a meal charge program to permit students 

in the district to charge for breakfast or lunch.  Collection of any payment for a 

meal charge program account that is in arrears shall be addressed in accordance 

with provisions of this Policy. 
 

The Board of Education recognizes a student may forget to bring breakfast or 

lunch (meal), as applicable, or money to purchase a meal to school on a school 

day.  In this circumstance, the food service program will provide the student a 

meal and will inform the Principal or designee.  The Principal or designee will 

contact the student’s parent to provide notice of an outstanding meal bill and will 

provide the parent with a period of ten school days to pay the amount due.  If the 

student’s parent has not made full payment by the end of the ten school days, the 

Principal or designee shall again contact the parent with a second notice 

informing the parent of any action to be taken by the school district in response to 

a student’s school breakfast or school lunch bill being in arrears.  Such action may 

include denying the student school breakfast or lunch.  A school district shall 

report at least biannually to the New Jersey Department of Agriculture the number 

of students who are denied school breakfast or school lunch in accordance with 

N.J.S.A. 18A:33-21a. and this Policy. 
 

The school district shall not: 
 

1. Publicly identify or stigmatize a student who cannot pay for a meal 

or whose school meal bill is in arrears.  (For example, by requiring 

the student to sit at a separate table or wear a wristband, hand 

stamp, or identifying mark or by serving the student an alternative 

meal); 

 

 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8550/page 2 of 4 

Unpaid Meal Charges/Outstanding  

Food Service Bill Charges 

 

 

2. Require a student who cannot pay for a school meal or whose 

school meal bill is in arrears to do chores or other work to pay for 

the school meal; or 

 

3. Require a student to discard a school meal after it has been served 

because of the student’s inability to pay for a school meal or 

because money is owed for previously provided meals. 

 

If a student owes money for the equivalent of five or more school meals at any 

time during the school year, the Principal or designee shall: 

 

1. Determine if the student is eligible for a free or reduced-price 

school meal; 

 

2. Make at least two attempts, not including the application or 

instructions provided to the parent each school year pursuant to 

N.J.S.A. 18A:33-21b.; to contact the student’s parent and have the 

parent fill out an application for the school lunch program and 

school breakfast program; and 

 

3. Contact the student’s parent to offer assistance with the application 

for the school lunch and school breakfast program; determine if 

there are other issues within the household that have caused the 

child to have insufficient funds to purchase a school breakfast or 

school lunch; and offer any other appropriate assistance. 

 

The school district shall direct communications about a student’s school meal bill 

being in arrears to the parent and not the student.  The school district’s contact 

with the parent may be via email or telephone call.  Nothing in N.J.S.A.    

18A:33-21 shall prohibit the school district from sending a student home with a 

letter addressed to a parent. 

 

If the student’s meal bill is in arrears, but the student has the money to purchase a 

meal on a subsequent school day, the student will be provided a meal with 

payment and the food service program will not use the student’s payment to repay 

previously unpaid charges if the student intended to use the money to purchase 

that school day’s meal. 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8550/page 3 of 4 

Unpaid Meal Charges/Outstanding  

Food Service Bill Charges 
 

 

A parent who has received a second notice their child’s meal bill is in arrears and 

who has not made payment in full within one week from the date of the second 

notice will be requested to meet with the Principal or designee to discuss and 

resolve the matter. 

 

A parent’s refusal to meet with the Principal or designee or take other steps to 

resolve the matter may be indicative of more serious issues in the family or 

household.  However, when a parent’s routine failure to provide breakfast or 

lunch is reasonably suspected to be indicative of child abuse or neglect, the 

Principal or designee shall immediately report such suspicion to the Department 

of Children and Families, Division of Child Protection and Permanency as 

required in N.J.S.A. 9:6-8.10.  Such reporting shall not be delayed to 

accommodate a parent’s meeting with the Principal or designee. 

 

Students receiving free meals will not be denied a meal even if they accrued a 

negative balance from other purchases in the cafeteria.   

 

In accordance with N.J.S.A 18A:33-21b., at the beginning of each school year, 

and upon initial enrollment in the case of a student enrolling during the school 

year, the school district shall provide to the parent of each student: 

 

1. Information on the National School Lunch Program and the 

Federal School Breakfast Program; 
 

2. An application to apply for the school lunch and school breakfast 

programs and instructions for completing the application; and 
 

3. Information on the rights of students and their families under 

N.J.S.A. 18A:22-21 et seq. 
 

The school district may provide the application and information electronically 

through the means by which the school district communicates with parents 

electronically.  The application and information shall be in a language the parent 

understands.      
 

The school district’s liaison for the education of homeless children shall 

coordinate with school district personnel to ensure that a homeless student 

receives free school meals and is monitored according to the school district 

policies pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:33-21c.  

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8550/page 4 of 4 

Unpaid Meal Charges/Outstanding  

Food Service Bill Charges 

 

 

The school district may post this Policy on the school district’s website provided 

there is a method in place to ensure this Policy reaches all households without 

access to a computer or the Internet.    

 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:33-21; 18A:33-21a.; 18A:33-21b.; 18A:33-21c. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted:  

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8600/page 1 of 3 

Student Transportation 

Aug 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 218 and 224] 

 

8600  STUDENT TRANSPORTATION 

 

The Board of Education shall transport eligible students to and from school and 

school related activities in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:39-1 et seq., N.J.A.C. 

6A:27-1 et seq., and Board policy.  Transportation shall be provided only to 

eligible public and nonpublic school students, authorized school staff members, 

and adults serving as approved chaperones. 

 

Nonpublic school transportation or aid in lieu of transportation shall be provided 

for resident students in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:39-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 

6A:27-2.1 et seq. 

 

Charter or renaissance school transportation or aid in lieu of transportation shall 

be provided for resident students in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:39-1 et seq. 

and N.J.A.C. 6A:27-3.1 et seq. 

 

The Board may provide transportation to and from school for public school 

students less than remote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

 

OPERATIONS 

8600/page 2 of 3 

Student Transportation 

 

Students with special needs shall be provided transportation in accordance with 

N.J.S.A. 18A:39-1 et seq., and with their Individualized Education Program (IEP) 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:27-5.1.  

 

The Board will approve all bus routes each school year.  Bus routes for all non-

remote students who must walk to and from school along hazardous routes will be 

designated and approved by the Board.  The Board may consider, but shall not be 

limited to, the criteria outlined in N.J.S.A. 18A:39-1.5 in determining “Hazardous 

Routes.” 

 

The Board will not be responsible for the transportation of nonresident students to 

or from school, except that transportation to and from school will be provided for 

homeless students; students residing in group homes; students residing in resource 

family homes; and students residing in shared custody homes pursuant to 

N.J.A.C. 6A:27-6.2, 6.3, 6.4, and 6.5. 

 

 

When the schools of this district are closed for inclement weather or other 

conditions, no transportation will be provided for students enrolled in any public, 

nonpublic, charter school, and/or renaissance school. 

 

The Board shall utilize cooperative/coordinated transportation services in 

accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:39-11.1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 

6A:27-10.1 et seq.  The Board shall utilize one of the agencies prior to 

determining to pay aid in lieu of transportation if in the prior year payments in 

lieu of transportation were provided.  The Board will provide to the 

cooperative/coordinated  transportation services any unique limitations or 

restrictions of the required transportation.  

 

Vehicles used to transport students to and from school or school related activities 

shall meet standards, registration, and inspection requirements of the New Jersey 

Department of Education (NJDOE), the New Jersey Motor Vehicle Commission 

(NJMVC), and any applicable Federal regulations.  The operation and fiscal 

management of the district’s transportation system shall be conducted in strict 

accordance with rules of the New Jersey State Board of Education and the 

NJDOE. 

 

In addition to the provisions of any State law, rule, or regulation containing more 

stringent requirements, provided that those requirements are compatible with 

Federal law, and notwithstanding the provisions of any State law, rule, or  



POLICY GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

8600/page 3 of 3 

Student Transportation 

 

 

regulation to the contrary, school bus operations in the State shall comply with the 

requirements outlined in N.J.S.A. 39:3B-27.  

 

 

N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-1 et seq.; 18A:39-1 et seq.; 18A:39-11.1 et seq. 

N.J.S.A. 27:15-16 

N.J.S.A. 39:3B-1 et seq.; 39:3B-2.1; 39:3B-10; 39:3B-27 

N.J.A.C. 6A:27-1.1 et seq.; 6A:27-2.1 et seq.; 6A:27-3.1 et seq.;  

6A:27-4.1 et seq.; 6A:27-5.1; 6A:27-6.2 through 6.5;  

6A:27-7.1 et seq.; 6A:27-9.1 et seq.; 6A:27-10.1 et seq.; 

6A:27-11.1 et seq.; 6A:27-12.1 et seq. 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 1 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

May 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 201, 207, 212 and 223] 
 

R 3224  EVALUATION OF PRINCIPALS, VICE PRINCIPALS, AND    

      ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 

 

A. Definitions – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.2 

 

The following words and terms shall have the following meanings when 

used in Policy and Regulation 3224 unless the context clearly indicates 

otherwise: 

 

“Annual performance report” means a written appraisal of the Principal’s, 

Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s performance prepared by the 

designated supervisor based on the evaluation rubric for his or her 

position. 

 

“Annual summative evaluation rating” means an annual evaluation rating 

that is based on appraisals of educator practice and student performance, 

and includes all measures captured in a Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal evaluation rubric.  The four summative performance 

categories are ineffective, partially effective, effective, and highly 

effective. 

 

“Calibration” in the context of educator evaluation means a process to 

monitor the competency of a trained evaluator to ensure the evaluator 

continues to apply an educator practice instrument accurately and 

consistently according to the standards and definitions of the specific 

instrument. 

 

“Chief School Administrator” means the Superintendent of Schools or the 

Administrative Principal if there is no Superintendent. 

 

“Commissioner” means Commissioner of the New Jersey Department of 

Education. 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 2 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

“Corrective Action Plan” means a written plan developed by the 

Superintendent or a designated supervisor in collaboration with the 

Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal to address deficiencies as 

outlined in an evaluation.  The corrective action plan shall include 

timelines for corrective action, responsibilities of the individual Principal, 

Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal and the school district for 

implementing the plan, and specific support that the district shall provide 

as defined in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-119.   

 

“Department” means the New Jersey Department of Education. 

 

“Designated supervisor” means the supervisor designated by the 

Superintendent of Schools or designee as the administrator’s supervisor.    

 

“District Evaluation Advisory Committee” means a group created to 

oversee and guide the planning and implementation of the Board of 

Education's evaluation policies and procedures as set forth in N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-2.3. 

 

“Educator practice instrument” means an assessment tool that provides:  

scales or dimensions that capture competencies of professional 

performance; and differentiation of a range of professional performance as 

described by the scales, which must be shown in practice and/or research 

studies.   

 

“Evaluation” means an appraisal of an individual’s professional 

performance in relation to his or her job description and professional 

standards and based on, when applicable, the individual’s evaluation 

rubric.  

 

“Evaluation rubric” means a set of criteria, measures, and processes used 

to evaluate all Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals in a 

specific school district or local education agency.  Evaluation rubrics 

consist of measures of professional practice, based on educator practice 

instruments and student outcomes.  Each Board of Education will have an 

evaluation rubric specifically for teachers, another specifically for 

Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals, and evaluation 

rubrics for other categories of teaching staff members.  

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 3 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

“Indicators of student progress and growth” means the results of 

assessment(s) of students as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:8, Standards and 

Assessment. 

 

“Individual professional development plan” is as defined in N.J.S.A. 

18A:6-119. 

 

“Job description” means a written specification of the function of a 

position, duties and responsibilities, the extent and limits of authority, and 

work relationships within and outside the school and school district. 

 

“Observation” means a method of collecting data on the performance of a 

Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, and Assistant Principal’s assigned duties and 

responsibilities.  An observation for the purpose of evaluation will be 

included in the determination of the annual summative evaluation rating 

and shall be conducted by the Superintendent or designee. 

 

“Post-observation conference” means a meeting, either in-person or 

remotely, between the supervisor who conducted the observation and the 

Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal for the purpose of 

evaluation to discuss the data collected in the observation.  

 

“Principal practice instrument” means an assessment tool that provides 

scales or dimensions that capture competencies of professional 

performance; and differentiation of a range of professional performance as 

described by the scales, which must be shown in practice and/or research 

studies.  The scores from the principal practice instrument are components 

of the evaluation rubrics and the scores are included in the summative 

evaluation rating for the individual.  

 

“Scoring guide” means a set of rules or criteria used to evaluate a 

performance, product, or project.  The purpose of a scoring guide is to 

provide a transparent and reliable evaluation process.  Educator practice 

instruments include a scoring guide that an evaluator uses to structure his 

or her assessments and ratings of professional practice. 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 4 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

“Semester” means half of the school year. 

 

“Signed” means the name of one physically written by oneself or an 

electronic code, sound, symbol, or process attached to or logically 

associated with a record and executed or adopted by a person with the 

intent to sign the record.  

 

“Student growth objective” means an academic goal that teachers and 

designated supervisors set for groups of students.  

 

“Student growth percentile” means a specific metric for measuring 

individual student progress on Statewide assessments by tracking how 

much a student’s test scores have changed relative to other students 

Statewide with similar scores in previous years. 

 

“Superintendent” means Superintendent of Schools or Chief School 

Administrator. 

 

“Supervisor” means an appropriately certified teaching staff member as 

defined in N.J.S.A. 18A:1-1, or Superintendent employed in the district in 

a supervisory role and capacity, and possessing a school administrator, 

Principal, or supervisor endorsement as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:9B-12 and 

certified to evaluate a Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal.  

 

B. Applicability of Rules on Collective Bargaining Agreements – N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-1.3 

 

The rules in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.1 et seq. shall not override any conflicting 

provision(s) of collective bargaining agreements or other employment 

contracts entered into by a school district in effect on July 1, 2013.  No 

collective bargaining agreement entered into after July 1, 2013, shall 

conflict with the educator evaluation system established pursuant to 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.1 et seq. or any other specific statute or regulation, nor 

shall topics subject to bargaining involve matters of educational policy or 

managerial prerogatives.  

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 5 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

C. Educator Evaluation Data, Information, and Annual Performance Reports 

– N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.4 

 

All information contained in annual performance reports and all 

information collected, compiled, and/or maintained by employees of the 

Board of Education for the purposes of conducting the educator evaluation 

process pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.1 et seq., including, but not limited 

to, digital records, shall be confidential.  Such information shall not be 

subject to public inspection or copying pursuant to the Open Public 

Records Act, N.J.S.A. 47:1A-1 et seq.  Nothing contained in N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-1.1 et seq. shall be construed to prohibit the Department or a school 

district from, at its discretion, collecting evaluation data pursuant to 

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-123.e. or distributing aggregate statistics regarding 

evaluation data. 

 

D. Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals – 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.1 

 

1. The Board of Education shall annually adopt evaluation rubrics for 

all Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals.  The 

evaluation rubrics shall have four defined annual ratings:  

ineffective, partially effective, effective, and highly effective. 

 

2. The evaluation rubrics for Principals, Vice Principals, and 

Assistant Principals shall include all other relevant minimum 

standards set forth in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-123 (P.L. 2012, c. 26, § 17c). 

 

3. Evaluation rubrics shall be submitted to the Commissioner by 

August June 1 for approval by August 15 1 of each year.  

 

E. Duties of the Board of Education – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.2 

 

1. The Board of Education shall meet the following requirements for 

the annual evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant 

Principals, unless otherwise specified: 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 6 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

a. Establish a District Evaluation Advisory Committee to 

oversee and guide the planning and implementation of the 

Board of Education's evaluation policies and procedures as 

set forth in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2 et seq.; 

 

b. Annually adopt policies and procedures developed by the 

Superintendent pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.4, including 

the evaluation rubrics approved by the Commissioner 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.1(c): 

 

(1) The Superintendent shall develop policies and 

procedures that, at a minimum, ensure student 

performance data on the Statewide assessment is, 

upon receipt, promptly distributed or otherwise 

made available to staff members who were 

primarily responsible for instructing the applicable 

students in the school year in which the assessment 

was taken, as well as to staff members who are or 

will be primarily responsible for instructing the 

applicable students in the subsequent school year. 

 

c. Ensure the Superintendent annually notifies all Principals, 

Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals of the adopted 

evaluation policies and procedures no later than October 1.  

If a Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal is hired 

after October 1, the Board/Superintendent shall notify all 

Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals of the 

policies and procedures at the beginning of his or her 

employment.  All Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant 

Principals shall be notified of amendments to the policy 

and procedures within ten Principal, Vice Principal, and 

Assistant Principal working days of adoption; 

 

d. Annually adopt by June 1, any Commissioner-approved 

educator practice instruments and, as part of the process 

described at N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.1(c), notify the Department 

which instruments will be used as part of the school 

district’s evaluation rubrics; 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 7 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

e. Ensure the Principal of each school within the school 

district has established a School Improvement Panel 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-3.1.  The panel shall be 

established annually by August 31 and shall carry out the 

duties and functions described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-3.2; 

 

f. Ensure data elements are collected and stored in an 

accessible and usable format.  Data elements shall include, 

but not be limited to, scores or evidence from observations 

for the purpose of evaluation and student growth objective 

data; and 

 

g. Ensure the Superintendent or designee certifies to the 

Department that any observer who conducts an observation 

of a Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal for the 

purpose of evaluation as described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-4.4; 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4; and 6A:10-6.2 shall meet the statutory 

observation requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-119;      

18A:6-123.b.(8); and N.J.S.A. 18A:27-3.1 and the teacher 

member of the School Improvement Panel requirements of 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-3.2.  

 

2. The Board of Education shall ensure the following training 

procedures are followed when implementing the evaluation rubric 

for all Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals and, 

when applicable, applying the Commissioner-approved principal 

practice instruments: 

 

a. Annually provide training on and descriptions of each 

component of the evaluation rubric for all Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals who are being 

evaluated in the school district and provide more thorough 

training for any Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant 

Principals who are being evaluated for the first time.  

Training shall include detailed descriptions of all 

evaluation rubric components including, when applicable, 

detailed descriptions of student achievement measures and 

all aspects of the principal practice instrument; 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 8 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

b. Annually provide updates and refresher training for 

supervisors who are conducting evaluations in the school 

district and more thorough training for any supervisor who 

will evaluate Principals, Vice Principals, or Assistant 

Principals for the first time.  Training shall be provided on 

each component of the evaluated Principal’s, Vice 

Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s evaluation rubric 

before the evaluation of the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal; 

 

c. The Superintendent shall annually certify to the 

Department that all supervisors of Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals in the school district 

who are utilizing evaluation rubrics have completed 

training on and demonstrated competency in applying the 

evaluation rubrics.  

 

F. District Evaluation Advisory Committee – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.3 

 

1. Members of the District Evaluation Advisory Committee shall 

include representation from the following groups:  teachers from 

each school level represented in the school district; central office 

administrators overseeing the teacher evaluation process; 

supervisors involved in teacher evaluation, when available or 

appropriate; and administrators conducting evaluations, including a 

minimum of one administrator conducting evaluations who 

participates on a School Improvement Panel.  Members also shall 

include the Superintendent, a special education administrator, a 

parent, and a member of the Board of Education. 

 

2. The Superintendent may extend membership on the District 

Evaluation Advisory Committee to representatives of other groups 

and to individuals. 

 

3. A Beginning in 2018-2019, the District Evaluation Advisory 

Committees is not shall no longer be required and the Board of 

Education shall have the discretion to establish a continue the 

District Evaluation Advisory Committee.  

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 9 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

G. Evaluation Procedures for Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant 

Principals - N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.4 

 

1. The provisions outlined in Policy and Regulation 3224 and 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.4 shall be the minimum requirements for the 

evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals. 

 

2. Evaluation policies and procedures requiring the annual evaluation 

of Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals shall be 

developed under the direction of the Superintendent, who may 

consult with the District Evaluation Advisory Committee or 

representatives from School Improvement Panels, and shall 

include, but not be limited to, a description of:  

 

a. Roles and responsibilities for implementation of evaluation 

policies and procedures;  

 

b. Job descriptions, evaluation rubrics for Principals, Vice 

Principals, and Assistant Principals, the process for 

calculating the summative ratings and each component and 

the evaluation regulations set forth in N.J.A.C.                

6A:10-1 et seq.; 

 

c. Methods of data collection and reporting appropriate to 

each job description, including, but not limited to, the 

process for student attribution to teachers, Principals, Vice 

Principals, Assistant Principals for calculating the median 

and school-wide student growth percentile; 

 

d. Processes for observations for the purpose of evaluation 

and post-observation conference(s) by a supervisor; 

 

e. Process for developing and scoring student growth 

objectives; 

 

f. The process for preparation of individual professional 

development plans; and 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 10 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

g. The process for preparation of an annual performance 

report by the Superintendent or designated supervisor, and 

an annual summary conference between the Principal, Vice 

Principal, or Assistant Principal and the Superintendent or 

designated supervisor.  

 

3. The annual summary conference between the designated 

supervisor and the Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal 

shall be held before the annual performance report is filed.  The 

conference shall occur on or before June 30 of each school year 

and shall include, but not be limited to, a review of the following: 

 

a. The performance of the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal based upon the job description and the 

scores or evidence compiled using the evaluation rubric, 

including, when applicable:  

 

(1) The educator’s principal’s  practice instrument; and 

 

(2) Available indicators or student achievement 

measures such as student growth objective scores 

and student growth percentile scores. 

 

b. The progress of the Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant 

Principal toward meeting the goals of the individual 

professional development plan or, when applicable, the 

corrective action plan; and 

 

c. The preliminary annual performance report.  

 

4. If any scores for the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant 

Principal’s evaluation rubric are not available at the time of the 

annual summary conference due to pending assessment results, the 

annual summative evaluation rating shall be calculated once all 

component ratings are available. 

 

5. The annual performance report for the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal shall be prepared by the designated supervisor 

and shall include, but not be limited to:  



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 11 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

a. A summative rating based on the evaluation rubric, 

including, when applicable, a total score for each 

component as described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5;  

 

b. Performance area(s) of strength and area(s) needing 

improvement based upon the job description and 

components of the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s evaluation rubric; and  

 

c. The Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s 

individual professional development plan or a corrective 

action plan from the evaluation year being reviewed in the 

report. 

 

6. The Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal and the 

designated supervisor shall sign the report within five Principal, 

Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal working days of the 

review. 

 

7. The Board of Education shall include all performance reports and 

supporting data, including, but not limited to, written observation 

reports and additional components of the summative evaluation 

rating as part of the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant 

Principal’s personnel file, or in an alternative, confidential 

location.  If reports and data are stored in an alternate location, the 

personnel file shall clearly indicate the report’s location and how it 

can be easily accessed.  The records shall be confidential and shall 

not be subject to public inspection or copying pursuant to the Open 

Public Records Act, N.J.S.A. 47:1A-1 et seq. 

 

H. Corrective Action Plans for Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant 

Principals – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.5 

 

1. For each Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal rated 

ineffective or partially effective on the annual summative 

evaluation, as measured by the evaluation rubrics, a corrective 

action plan shall be developed by the Principal, Vice Principal, or  

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 12 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

Assistant Principal and the designated supervisor.  If the Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal does not agree with the 

corrective action plan’s content, the designated supervisor shall 

make the final determination. 

 

2. The corrective action plan shall be developed and the Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal and his or her designated 

supervisor shall meet to discuss the corrective action plan by 

October 31 of the school year following the year of evaluation 

except: 

 

a. If the ineffective or partially effective summative 

evaluation rating is received after October 1 of the school 

year following the year of evaluation, a corrective action 

plan shall be developed, and the Principal, Vice Principal, 

or Assistant Principal and his or her designated supervisor 

shall meet to discuss the corrective action plan within 

twenty-five Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal 

working days following the school district’s receipt of the 

Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s 

summative rating. 

 

3. The content of the corrective action plan shall replace the content 

of the individual professional development plan required pursuant 

to N.J.A.C. 6A:9C-4.3(a) and 4.4(a) and shall: 

 

a. Address areas in need of improvement identified in the 

principal evaluation rubric; 

 

b. Include specific, demonstrable goals for improvement; 

 

c. Include responsibilities of the evaluated employee and the 

school district for the plan’s implementation; and 

 

d. Include timelines for meeting the goal(s).  

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 13 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

4. The designated supervisor and the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal on a corrective action plan shall discuss the 

Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s progress 

toward the goals outlined in the corrective action plan during each 

post-observation conference, when required by N.J.S.A.     

18A:27-3.1 or N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4. 

 

5. Progress toward the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant 

Principal’s goals outlined in the corrective action plan: 

 

a. Shall be documented in the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s personnel file and reviewed at the 

annual summary conference and the mid-year evaluation.  

Both the Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal on 

a corrective action plan and his or her designated 

supervisor may collect data and evidence to demonstrate 

the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s 

progress toward his or her corrective action plan goals; and 

 

b. May be used as evidence in the Principal’s, Vice 

Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s next annual summative 

evaluation; however, such progress shall not guarantee an 

effective rating on the next summative evaluation. 

 

6. Responsibilities of the evaluated Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal on a corrective action plan shall not be 

exclusionary of other plans for improvement determined to be 

necessary by the designated supervisor. 

 

7. The Superintendent or his or her designee, and the Principal, as 

appropriate, shall conduct a mid-year evaluation of any Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal pursuant to N.J.S.A.    

18A:6-121.c.  The mid-year evaluation shall occur approximately 

midway between the development of the corrective action plan and 

the expected receipt of the next annual summative rating.  The 

mid-year evaluation shall include, at a minimum a conference to  

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 14 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

 discuss progress toward the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s goals outlined in the corrective action plan.  

The mid-year evaluation conference may be combined with a post-

observation conference. 

 

8. The Superintendent shall ensure Principals, Vice Principals, and 

Assistant Principals with a corrective action plan receive one 

observation and a post-observation conference in addition to the 

observations required in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4 for the purpose of 

evaluation as described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.2 and 5.4.   

 

9. The corrective action plan shall remain in effect until the Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal receives his or her next 

summative evaluation rating.  

 

10. There shall be no minimum number of Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal working days a Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s corrective action plan can be in place. 

 

I. Components of Principal Evaluation Rubrics – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.1 

 

1. Unless otherwise noted, the components of the principal evaluation 

rubrics shall apply to teaching staff members holding the position 

of Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal and holding a 

valid and effective standard, provisional, or emergency 

administrative certificate. 

 

2. The principal evaluation rubric shall meet the standards provided 

in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-123, including, but not limited to: 

 

a. Measures of student achievement pursuant to N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-5.2; and 

 

b. Measures of principal practice pursuant to N.J.A.C.   

6A:10-5.3 and 5.4.  

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 15 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

3. To earn a summative rating, the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal shall have a student achievement score, 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.2 and a principal practice score 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.3 and 5.4. 

 

4. Each score shall be converted to a percentage weight so all 

measures make up 100 percent of the evaluation rubric.  By August 

31 prior to the school year in which the evaluation rubric applies, 

the Department shall provide on its website the required 

percentage weight of each component and the required summative 

rating scale.  All components shall be worth the following 

percentage weights or fall within the following ranges: 

 

a. If, according to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.2(b), the Principal, Vice 

Principal, or Assistant Principal receives a school-wide 

student growth percentile score as described in N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-5.2(c), the score shall be at least ten percent and no 

greater than forty percent of evaluation rubric rating as 

determined by the Department. 

 

b. Measure of average student growth objective for all 

teachers, as described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.2(d), shall be at 

least ten percent and no greater than twenty percent of 

evaluation rubric rating as determined by the Department. 

 

c. Measure of administrator goal, as described in N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-5.2(e), shall be no less than ten percent and no 

greater than forty percent of evaluation rubric rating as 

determined by the Department. 

 

d. Measure of principal practice, as described in N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-5.3(b), shall be no less than fifty percent of 

evaluation rubric rating. 

 

5. Standardized assessments, used as a measure of student progress, 

shall not be the predominant factor in determining a Principal’s 

annual summative rating. 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 16 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

6. The Department shall periodically collect principal evaluation 

rubric data that shall include, but are not limited to, component-

level scores and annual summative ratings. 

 

J. Student Achievement Components of Principal Evaluation Rubrics – 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.2 

 

1. Measures of student achievement shall be used to determine 

impact on student learning and shall include the following 

components: 

 

a. The school-wide student growth percentile of all students 

assigned to the Principal; 

 

b. Average student growth objective scores of every teacher, 

as described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-4.2(e), assigned to the 

Principal; and 

 

c. Administrator goals set by Principals, Vice Principals, or 

Assistant Principals in consultation with their supervisor 

pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.2(e), which shall be specific 

and measurable, based on student growth and/or 

achievement data. 

 

2. The school-wide student growth percentile score shall be included 

in the annual summative rating of Principals, Vice Principals, and 

Assistant Principals who are assigned to a school as of October 15 

and who are employed in schools where student growth percentiles 

are available for students in one or more grades.  If the Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal is employed in more than one 

school, the Superintendent shall assign to the Principal, Vice 

Principal, or Assistant Principal, as appropriate, the school-wide 

student growth percentile from one school and shall notify the 

Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal at the beginning of 

the school year of the student growth percentile assignment.  

 

3. The Department shall calculate the school-wide student growth 

percentile for Principals, Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals. 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 17 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

4. The average student growth objective scores of all teachers, as 

described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-4.2(e), shall be a component of the 

Principal’s annual summative rating.  The average student growth 

objective scores for Vice Principals or Assistant Principals shall be 

determined according to the following procedures:  

 

a. The Principal, in consultation with the Vice Principal or 

Assistant Principal, shall determine prior to the start of the 

school year, which teachers, if not all teachers in the 

school, shall be linked to the Vice Principal’s and Assistant 

Principal’s average student growth objective score. 

 

b. If the Vice Principal or Assistant Principal does not agree 

with the list of teachers linked to his or her name for the 

purposes of this measurement, the Principal shall make the 

final determination. 

 

5. Administrator goals for Principals, Vice Principals, or Assistant 

Principals shall be developed and measured according to the 

following procedures: 

 

a. The designated supervisor shall determine for all 

Principals, Vice Principals, or Assistant Principals, the 

number of required administrator goals which shall reflect 

the achievement of a significant number of students within 

the school.  By August 31 prior to the school year in which 

the evaluation rubric applies, the Department shall provide 

on the Department’s website the minimum and maximum 

number of required goals, which will be at least one goal 

and no more than four goals. 

 

b. Principals, Vice Principals, or Assistant Principals shall 

develop, in consultation with their designated supervisor, 

each administrator goal.  Each Vice Principal and Assistant 

Principal shall set goals specific to his or her job 

description or adopt the same goals as his or her Principal.  

If the Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal and  

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 18 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

his or her designated supervisor do not agree upon the 

administrator goal the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s designated supervisor shall make the 

final determination. 

 

c. Administrator goals and the criteria for assessing 

performance based on those objectives shall be determined, 

recorded, and retained by the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal and his or her designated supervisor by 

October 31 of each school year, or within twenty-five 

Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal 

working days of the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s start date if he or she begins work 

after October 1. 

 

d. The administrator goal score shall be approved by the 

designated supervisor of the Principal, Vice Principal, or 

Assistant Principal.  The Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s administrator goal score, if available, 

shall be discussed at his or her annual summary conference 

and recorded in his or her personnel file. 

 

K. Principal Practice Component of Evaluation Rubric – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.3 

 

1. Measures of principal practice shall include a measure determined 

through a Commissioner-approved principal practice instrument 

and may include a leadership measure determined through the 

Department-created leadership rubric. 

 

2. Principal practice component rating shall be based on the 

measurement of the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant 

Principal’s performance according to the school district’s 

Commissioner-approved principal practice instrument.  

Observations pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4 shall be used as one 

form of evidence for this measurement. 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 19 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

3. Leadership practice shall be determined by a score on a leadership 

rubric, which will assess the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or 

Assistant Principal’s ability to improve student achievement and 

teaching staff member effectiveness through identified leader 

behaviors.  The rubric will be posted on the Department’s website 

and annually maintained. 

 

L. Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal Observations – N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-5.4 

 

1. The Superintendent or his or her designee, shall conduct 

observations for the evaluation of Principals pursuant to N.J.S.A. 

18A:6-121 and he or she shall be trained pursuant to N.J.A.C. 

6A:10-2.2(b). 

 

2. A Principal, or the Superintendent or his or her designee, shall 

conduct observations for the evaluation of Vice Principals and 

Assistant Principals pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:6-121. 

 

3. For the purpose of collecting data for the evaluation of a Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal, an observation, as described 

in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-119 and N.J.A.C. 6A:10-1.2, may include, but is 

not limited to:  building walk-through, staff meeting observation, 

parent conference observation, or case study analysis of a 

significant student issue. 

 

4. Post-observation conferences shall include the following 

procedures:  

 

a. A supervisor who is present at the observation shall 

conduct a post-observation conference with the Principal, 

Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal being observed.  A 

post-observation conference shall occur no more than 

fifteen Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal 

working days following each observation. 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 20 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

b. The post-observation conference shall be for the purpose of 

reviewing the data collected at the observation, connecting 

the data to the principal practice instrument and the 

Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s 

individual professional development plan, collecting 

additional information needed for the evaluation, and 

offering areas to improve effectiveness. 

 

c. With the consent of the observed Principal, Vice Principal, 

or Assistant Principal, post-observation conferences for 

individuals who are not on a corrective action plan may be 

conducted via written communication, including electronic 

communication. 

 

d. One post-observation conference may be combined with 

the Principal’s, Vice Principal’s, or Assistant Principal’s 

annual summary conference as long as it occurs within the 

required fifteen Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant 

Principal working days following the observation.  

 

e. A written or electronic observation report shall be signed 

by the supervisor who conducted the observation and post-

observation and the Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant 

Principal who was observed. 

 

f. The Principal, Vice Principal, or Assistant Principal shall 

submit his or her written objection(s) of the evaluation 

within ten Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant 

Principal working days following the conference.  The 

objection(s) shall be attached to each party’s copy of the 

annual performance report.  

 

5. Each tenured Principal, Vice Principal, and Assistant Principal 

shall be observed as described in N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4, at least two 

times during each school year.  Each nontenured Principal, Vice 

Principal, and Assistant Principal shall be observed as described in 

N.J.A.C. 6A:10-5.4 at least three times during each school year, as  

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 21 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

 required by N.J.S.A. 18A:27-3.1.  An additional observation shall 

be conducted pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:10-2.5(h) for Principals, 

Vice Principals, and Assistant Principals who are on a corrective 

action plan. 

 

M. Principal Practice Instrument – N.J.A.C. 6A:10-7.3 

 

1. The principal practice instrument approved by the Department 

shall meet the following criteria: 

 

a. Incorporate domains of practice and/or performance criteria 

that align to the 2015 2008 ISLLC Professional Standards 

for Educational School Leaders developed by the 

National Policy Board for Educational Administration 

(NPBEA) Interstate School Leadership Licensure 

Consortium incorporated herein by reference, available at:  

 

http://www.ccsso.org/documents/2008/educational_leaders

hip_policy_standards_2008.pdf; 

 

b. Include scoring guides for assessing principal practice that 

differentiate among a minimum of four levels of 

performance, and the differentiation has been shown in 

practice and/or research studies.  Each scoring guide shall 

clearly define the expectations for each category and 

provide a conversion to four rating categories; 

 

c. Rely on, to the extent possible, multiple sources of 

evidence collected throughout the school year, including, 

but not limited to, evaluation of a Principal’s leadership 

related to: 

 

(1) Implementing high-quality and standards-aligned 

curriculum, assessments, and instruction; and 

 

(2) Evaluating the effectiveness of teaching staff 

members and supporting their professional growth. 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite  1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 

R 3224/page 22 of 22 

Evaluation of Principals, Vice Principals, 

and Assistant Principals 

 

 

d. Include descriptions of specific training and 

implementation details required for the instrument to be 

effective. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 1 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

R 5131 STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

Testing Coordinator 

The Assistant Principal or administrative designee will coordinate and supervise the 

testing program at the respective schools. 

Eligibility for Testing 

Somerset Hills School District students in grades 9-12, participating in athletics, extra-

curricular activities not required by the Board of Education for graduation and/or those 

students possessing an on-campus parking permit will be eligible for random drug 

testing, as well as those students whose parent has voluntarily consented to random 

testing for the student (the "Testing Pool").  

Students become eligible upon submission of a consent form, signed by both the student 

and their parent/guardian. Student athletes must submit a consent form on or before on 

the first day they participate in a practice. Students involved in extracurricular activities 

must submit a consent form by no later than their attendance at a second meeting and 

students with parking permits for on-campus parking must submit a consent form before 

the first day of parking. 

Students remain eligible for random drug testing from the date the consent form is turned 

in throughout the remainder of the school year whether or not they have been previously 

tested or are currently participating in athletics or extra-curricular activity at the time they 

might be randomly selected for a drug test. In the event that a student eligible for random 

alcohol and drug testing ceases to participate or withdraws from an athletic team, extra-

curricular activity, and/or student parking, he or she has the opportunity to submit to the 

Assistant Principal or administrative designee an Activity Drop Form. In order for a 

student's withdrawal to be effective and thereby remove him or her from the Testing 

Pool, the student's Activity Drop Form must be signed by both the student and a 

parent/guardian.  The Activity Drop Form shall remain in effect for a minimum of one 

calendar year, with a built in fifteen (15) day grace period for reconsideration.  

The District will, as a goal, aim to test no less than 10% but no more than 35% of the 

total number of students in the Testing Pool annually. 

For what Substances will Students be tested? 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 2 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

In administering the Program, the District will test for the presence of certain substances 

that may include, but are not limited to, the following substances or their metabolites: 

alcohol, marijuana (THC), opiates, cocaine, methamphetamines, anabolic steroids and 

phencyclidine (a/k/a PCP), MDMA (a/k/a) Ecstasy, and/or any other substance defined as 

a "controlled substance" by either New Jersey or Federal law. 

Selection of Students for Testing 

A confidential testing schedule will be created by the administrations of the school prior 

to the initiation of the Program to ensure that testing of eligible students is conducted in a 

manner that is random. Testing will only occur on student contact days during the 

academic year.  

Selection of eligible students for testing will be conducted in a purely and entirely 

random basis, which will be carried out as follows:    

1. The Testing Coordinator or designee will assign a number to each student eligible for 

testing.  

2. The Testing Coordinator or designee will receive a list of numbers to be tested. These 

numbers will be a set number of students, based on the number of eligible students in the 

testing pool, who are randomly selected through a computer program designed for this 

purpose.  

3. The Assistant Principal or administrative designee will notify the individual(s) selected 

for testing (the "Participant") (in person) and escort the Participant to the designated 

"Testing Site".    

4. The Testing Site will be at the Participant's respective school in an area that has a 

secured bathroom which will maximize privacy of the Participant.    

5. Alternate student selections will be made in the event of student absence.    

6. The names and/or any other personally identifiable information of the Participants will 

remain confidential. 

Administering the Test 

The testing shall be conducted by the school physician, school nurse or a physician, 

laboratory or health care facility designated by the Board of Education (“approved 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 3 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

outside agency”). All aspects of the Program, including the taking of specimens, will be 

conducted so as to safeguard any and all the personal and/or privacy rights of the 

Participant to the maximum extent possible. The Policy treats a Participant's test result as 

a confidential health record pursuant to both federal and state regulations.  42 C.F.R. 2.1 

and 2.2; N.J.A.C. 6A: 16-1.5. As such, any information obtained by the Program which 

would identify the Participant as a drug or alcohol user may be disclosed only for those 

purposes and under those conditions permitted by federal regulations in accordance with 

42 C.F.R. - Part II. No testing record of any Participant will be used to initiate or 

substantiate any criminal charges against a Participant or to conduct any investigation of 

him or her, and the District will not share Participants' individual test results with law 

enforcement authorities.  

Any information transmitted to an approved outside collection agency for testing or 

processing will not contain any personally identifiable information of the Participant. The 

approved outside collection agency will oversee the collection of specimens in 

accordance with federal Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

(SAMHSA) standards. 

The approved outside agency will collect specimens from the selected students and 

forward the specimens to a licensed laboratory for testing. Any information transmitted 

from an approved outside collection agency to a licensed laboratory for testing or 

processing will not contain any personally identifiable information of the Participant. The 

agency may conduct an initial on-site test on the specimen before sending the specimen 

to the laboratory.  

The Participant shall complete a specimen control form that bears an assigned 

identification number. This identification number shall be the means for identifying the 

specimens by all laboratory personnel. Only the designated school personnel shall know 

the assigned number for each Participant.  

The Participant shall submit a saliva, urine and/or breath specimen according the 

Somerset Hills School District Random Alcohol and Drug Testing Written Consent 

Form. 

Specimens will be kept by the testing facility for at least ninety (90) days pending a 

request for retesting of a specimen, if any. 

Any Participant unable to produce an adequate specimen during the collection period will 

be recalled for testing. 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 4 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

Any attempt by a Participant to tamper with the specimen collection process will deem 

and constitute the specimen as positive. 

All efforts will be made to minimize the instructional impact of testing and to maintain 

the confidentiality and privacy rights of Participants. All urine testing will be conducted 

in a closed-door restroom without direct observation by adult monitors.  

Notification of Testing & Testing Results      

1. Students participating in District athletic programs, extra-curricular activities not 

required by the Board for graduation, volunteers to the random drug testing program, or 

students who possess a District parking permit for on-campus parking are required to 

complete the Somerset Hills School District Random Drug Testing Program Consent 

Form (the "Consent Form").  

2. The parent(s) or guardian(s) of students selected for testing will be notified (via phone 

call or message) on the day of testing.    

3. Where a Participant tests positive, the Participant's parent(s) or guardian(s) will be 

contacted directly by a Medical Review Officer (MRO) to conduct a consultation. The 

consultation will address the reasons for the positive test and a decision will be made by 

the MRO regarding the legitimacy, validity, or accuracy of a positive test. The MRO will 

determine if that substance has been taken pursuant to a legal prescription.    

4. Results of student tests confirmed by the MRO will be provided to the Superintendent 

or designee within twenty-four (24) hours of the MRO's consultation with the Participant 

and his or her parent(s) or guardian(s).    

5. Participant test results will be kept in confidential files separate and apart from his or 

her other educational records and shall be disclosed only to those personnel who have a 

need to be informed regarding the result of the test in order to implement or to oversee 

implementation of the Program or the consequences for violating the Policy. Student drug 

testing information resulting from the Program will not be turned over to any law 

enforcement authorities except under circumstances in which the District is legally 

compelled to surrender or disclose such test results. N.J.A.C. 6A:16-3.2    

6. The District respects the privacy of its students and shall maintain confidentiality 

regarding any alcohol and drug testing for this Program. The results will only be released 

to designated district personnel. All records and subsequent actions shall be kept in a file 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 5 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

separate from the student's regular file. The district Personnel will not release records of 

drug and alcohol tests or any resulting action to anyone other that the student and/or 

his/her parent/guardian, except under circumstances in which the District is legally 

compelled to surrender or disclose this information, without written authorization from 

the student and/or his/her parent/guardian. In accordance with 42 C.F.R. - Part II. 

  

Consequences 

Consequences will result from the following:      

1. A confirmed positive alcohol or drug test;    

2. Refusal to participate in testing when selected; and/or    

3. Tampering with the specimen collection process.  

4. Students will be ineligible for participation in a district athletics program, District 

extra-curricular activity or parking on-campus unless they complete the Somerset Hills 

School District Random Alcohol and Drug Testing Program Consent Form. 

When a Random Alcohol or Drug Test is Positive: 

1. FIRST INFRACTION 

The assistant principal will contact the parents to remove the student from school and 

make arrangements for the mandatory medical examination pursuant to the statute, 

N.J.S.A. 18A:40A-12.  

Student will be removed from participation on the team/activity for a minimum of 30 

calendar days and parking for 30 calendar days. Prior to their return of privileges, 

students will:  

 Complete a drug/alcohol evaluation by appropriately certified or licensed 

professionals to make a positive determination of a student’s need for programs 

and services that extend beyond the general school program, as necessary.  

 Submit a drug and alcohol test free of alcohol and/or any controlled dangerous 

substance. 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 6 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

 Meet with the Student Assistance Counselor once a week for 30 calendar days. 

A signed information release form must be available to the student assistance counselor. 

Students must complete the evaluation and recommended program as required or will be 

considered to be non-compliant with this policy and ineligible to continue participation in 

athletics, extracurricular activities, and/or parking. Students who are in violation of this 

policy, while out of season, or not currently participating in an extracurricular activity, 

will be required to submit a drug and alcohol test free of alcohol and/or any controlled 

dangerous substance prior to beginning the next activity or sport season. 

2. SECOND INFRACTION 

The assistant principal will contact the parents to remove the student from school and 

make arrangements for the mandatory medical examination pursuant to the statute, 

N.J.S.A. 18A:40A-12. Student will be removed from participation on the team/activity 

for a minimum of 60 calendar days and parking for the remainder of the school year. 

Prior to their return to activities or athletics, students will:  

 Complete a drug/alcohol evaluation by appropriately certified or licensed 

professionals to make a positive determination of a student’s need for programs 

and services that extend beyond the general school program, as necessary.  

 Submit a drug and alcohol test free of alcohol and/or any controlled dangerous 

substance. 

 Meet with the Student Assistance Counselor once a week for 60 calendar days.  

A signed information release form must be available to the student assistance counselor. 

The parent(s) is/are responsible for the cost of the evaluation, any recommended 

program, or any further required drug tests. Students with documented financial hardship 

will be provided assistance through the Student Assistance Counselor.   

Students must complete the evaluation and recommended program as required or will be 

considered to be non-compliant with this policy and ineligible to continue participation in 

athletics and/or extracurricular activities. Students who are in violation of this policy, 

while out of season, or not currently participating in an extracurricular activity, will be 

required to submit a drug and alcohol test free of alcohol and/or any controlled dangerous 

substance prior to beginning the next activity or sport season. 



REGULATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOMERSET HILLS 

   BOARD OF EDUCATION 

STUDENTS 

R 5131/Page 7 of 7 

STUDENT RANDOM DRUG TESTING 

3. THIRD AND SUBSEQUENT INFRACTIONS 

At the discretion of the principal, permanent removal from all athletic and extra-

curricular activities may be imposed. 

Complete a drug/alcohol evaluation by appropriately certified or licensed professionals to 

make a positive determination of a student’s need for programs and services that extend 

beyond the general school program, as necessary.  

The student will be subjected to required periodic drug testing. 

Meet with the Student Assistance Counselor weekly for a period of three months. 

Appeal Procedure    

In the case of a positive result, a second sample will be collected during the testing period 

before the student leaves the testing area.  If a Participant (or his/her parent(s) or 

guardian(s)) requests an appeal, this sample will be sent to a laboratory selected by the 

District to serve as a confirming test. The request must be made within 24 hours of 

receiving the results of the drug test.  The testing lab will be responsible for maintaining 

the chain of custody of the second sample. 

Any participant unable to produce an adequate second specimen during the collection 

period will be provided with fluids.  In the event a second sample cannot be produced 

within three hours, the participant recognizes that their appeal cannot be processed and 

that results from the first specimen will be considered conclusive.   

  

Adopted: March 26, 2018 

Revised: February 27, 2019 

Revised: September 25, 2019 

  

  

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 1 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

Oct 21 

M 

 

[See POLICY ALERT No. 225] 

 

R 5751  SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF STUDENTS 

 

The Board of Education will not tolerate sexual harassment of students by school 

employees, other students, or third parties.  The school district shall investigate 

and resolve allegations of sexual harassment of students engaged in by school 

employees, other students, or third parties pursuant to 34 CFR §106.3(c) and 

Policy and Regulation 5751.  In addition, reports of sexual harassment shall also 

be investigated in accordance with the requirements of New Jersey’s Anti-

Bullying Bill of Rights Act and Policy 5512.   

 

A. Definitions 

 

1. For the purpose of Policy and Regulation 5751 and in accordance 

with 34 CFR §106: 

 

a. “Sexual harassment” (34 CFR §106.30(a)) means conduct 

on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the 

following:  

 

(1) An employee of the school district conditioning the 

provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the school 

district on a student’s participation in unwelcome 

sexual conduct;  

 

(2) Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable 

person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively 

offensive that it effectively denies a student equal 

access to the school district’s education program or 

activity; or 

 

(3) “Sexual assault” as defined in 20 U.S.C. 

§1092(f)(6)(A)(v), “dating violence” as defined in   

34 U.S.C. §12291(a)(10), “domestic violence” as 

defined in 34 U.S.C. §12291(a)(8), or “stalking” as 

defined in 34 U.S.C. §12291(a)(30).  

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 2 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 
 

 

b. “Complainant” (34 CFR §106.30(a)) means a student 

currently enrolled who is alleged to be the Complainant of 

conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.  
 

(1) A parent may act on behalf of the Complainant in 

accordance with State law, court orders, child 

custody arrangements, or other sources granting 

legal rights to parents.   
 

(2) A parent has a legal right to act on a Complainant’s 

behalf, this right applies throughout all aspects of 

the Title IX matter, including throughout the 

grievance process.  
 

c. “Decision-maker” (34 CFR §106.45(b)(7)) means a staff 

member(s) who is not the Title IX Coordinator or the 

school staff member who conducted the investigation, 

designated by the Superintendent of Schools, to objectively 

evaluate the relative evidence and reach conclusions about 

whether the Respondent is responsible for the alleged 

sexual harassment in accordance with the provisions of    

34 CFR. §106. 
 

d. “Education program or activity” (34 CFR §106.44(a)) 

includes locations, events, or circumstances over which the 

school district exercises substantial control over both the 

Respondent and the context in which the sexual harassment 

occurs.   
 

e. “Formal complaint” (34 CFR §106.30(a)) means a 

document filed by a Complainant or signed by the Title IX 

Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a 

Respondent and requesting that the school district 

investigate the allegation of sexual harassment.  As used in 

this definition paragraph, the phrase “document filed by a 

Complainant” means a document or electronic submission 

(such as by electronic mail or through an online portal 

provided for this purpose by the school district) that 

contains the Complainant’s physical or digital signature, or 

otherwise indicates that the Complainant is the person 

filing the formal complaint.  



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 3 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 
 

 

f. “Investigator” (34 CFR §106.45(b)(5)) means a staff 

member or staff members who may be the Title IX 

Coordinator and who is not a decision-maker, designated 

by the Superintendent of Schools, to investigate alleged 

sexual harassment in accordance with 34 CFR §106.  The 

investigator may be the school district’s Affirmative Action 

Officer only if the Affirmative Action Officer is not the 

decision-maker. 
 

g. “Program or activity” and “program” (34 CFR 

§106.2(h)(2)(ii)) means all of the operations of a local 

educational agency (as defined in 20 U.S.C. §8801), system 

of vocational education, or other school system. 
 

h. “Respondent” (34 CFR §106.30(a)) means an individual 

who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that 

could constitute sexual harassment. 
 

(1) A parent may act on behalf of the Respondent in 

accordance with State law, court orders, child 

custody arrangements, or other sources granting 

legal rights to parents.   
 

(2) If a parent has a legal right to act on a Respondent’s 

behalf, this right applies throughout all aspects of 

the Title IX matter, including throughout the 

grievance process.  
 

i. “Title IX Coordinator” (34 CFR §106.8(a)) means an 

individual designated and approved by the Board to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with its responsibilities 

under 34 CFR §106 and this Policy.  The individual must 

be referred to as the “Title IX Coordinator” and may also 

be the investigator but cannot be the decision-maker.   
 

B. Reporting and Notification Requirements 
 

1. Sexual harassment may take place electronically or on an online 

platform used by the school, including, but not limited to, 

computer and internet networks; digital platforms; and computer 

hardware or software owned or operated by, or used in the 

operations of the school.  



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 4 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 
 

 

2. In accordance with 34 CFR §106.8(a), any person may report sex 

discrimination, including sexual harassment (whether or not the 

person reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct 

that could constitute sex discrimination or sexual harassment), in 

person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the 

contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator, or by any 

other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the 

person’s verbal or written report.   
 

a. Such a report may be made at any time (including during 

non-business hours) by using the telephone number or 

electronic mail address, or by mail to the office address 

listed for the Title IX Coordinator. 
 

3. A school district with “actual knowledge” of sexual harassment in 

the educational program or activity of the school district against a 

student, must respond promptly in a manner that is not 

“deliberately indifferent”. 
 

a. The school district has “actual knowledge” when an 

employee receives a complaint of sexual harassment or an 

employee is aware of behavior that could constitute sexual 

harassment.  
 

(1) Any school employee who receives a complaint of 

sexual harassment or is aware of behavior that could 

constitute sexual harassment is required to report 

that information to the Title IX Coordinator in 

accordance with the provisions of B.1. above.  
 

(2) In addition to the district’s response in accordance 

with this Regulation, the district must report any 

potential child abuse to appropriate law 

enforcement and child welfare authorities in 

accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:36-24; N.J.S.A. 

18A:36-25; N.J.A.C. 6A:16-11.1; and Policy and 

Regulation 8462.  
 

b. A school district is “deliberately indifferent” only if the 

response to sexual harassment is clearly unreasonable in 

light of the known circumstances, pursuant to                    

34 CFR §106.44(a).  



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 5 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

4. The district is required to offer supportive measures to the 

Complainant even if the Respondent ceased being enrolled or 

employed by the district prior to the filing of a formal complaint.   

 

a. If the Respondent ceases to be enrolled in or employed by 

the district after a formal complaint is filed, the district may 

dismiss the complaint, but must still offer supportive 

measures to the Complainant pursuant to                           

34 CFR §106.45(b)(3)(ii).  

 

5. The Title IX Coordinator shall notify persons entitled to a 

notification pursuant to 34 CFR §106.8(a) that the school district 

does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the education program 

or activity it operates and it is required by Title IX and Policy and 

Regulation 5751 not to discriminate in such a manner in 

accordance with 34 CFR §106.8(b)(1).  

 

6. The Title IX Coordinator shall prominently display the contact 

information required to be listed for the Title IX Coordinator 

pursuant to 34 CFR §106.8(b)(2)(i) on the school district’s website 

and in each handbook or catalog the school district makes available 

to persons entitled to a notification in accordance with                  

34 CFR §106.8(a). 

 

a. Policy 5751 and this Regulation shall be prominently 

displayed on the district’s website and accessible to 

anyone.   

 

C. Supportive Measures 

 

1. “Supportive measures” mean non-disciplinary, non-punitive, 

individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably 

available, and without fee or charge to the Complainant or the 

Respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or 

where no formal complaint has been filed pursuant to                   

34 CFR §106.30(a). 

 

2. Supportive measures shall be available to the Complainant, 

Respondent, and as appropriate, witnesses or other impacted 

individuals.   



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 6 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

3. The Title IX Coordinator shall maintain consistent contact with the 

parties to ensure that safety, emotional and physical well-being are 

being addressed.   

 

4. Generally, supportive measures are meant to be short-term in 

nature and will be re-evaluated on a periodic basis.   

 

a. To the extent there is a continuing need for supportive 

measures after the conclusion of the resolution process, the 

Title IX Coordinator will work with appropriate school 

district resources to provide continued assistance to the 

parties.   

 

D. Grievance Process  

 

1. The school district will use the grievance process outlined in        

34 CFR §106.45 and this Regulation to address formal complaints 

of sexual harassment.  

  

2. Parents, students, unions and associations, and staff members shall 

receive notice of the grievance procedures and the Title IX 

Coordinator’s name or title, office, address, email address, and 

telephone number in accordance with 34 CFR §106.8(a). 

 

3. The school district’s grievance process may, but need not, provide 

for a hearing pursuant to 34 CFR §106.45(b)(6)(ii). 

 

4. The school district may not require as a condition of enrollment or 

continuing enrollment, or employment or continuing employment, 

or enjoyment of any other right, waiver of the right to an 

investigation and adjudication of formal complaints of sexual 

harassment consistent with 34 CFR §106.45(b)(9).   

 

5. The school district may not require the parties to participate in an 

informal resolution process regarding a Title IX claim and may not 

offer an informal resolution process unless a formal complaint is 

filed pursuant to 34 CFR §106.45(b)(9).  

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 7 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

6. The Title IX Coordinator must promptly contact the Complainant 

in accordance with 34 CFR §106.44(a).   

 

7. In response to a formal complaint, the school district will follow a 

grievance process that complies with 34 CFR §106.45.   

 

a. Upon receipt of a formal complaint, the Title IX 

Coordinator shall provide written notice to the parties who 

are known in accordance with 34 CFR §106.45(b)(2)(i). 

 

b. The Title IX Coordinator shall provide the investigator with 

a copy of the formal complaint if the Title IX Coordinator 

is not the investigator.   

 

c. The investigator shall investigate the allegations contained 

in a formal complaint pursuant to 34 CFR §106.45(b).   

 

8. The investigator shall create an investigative report in accordance 

with the provisions of 34 CFR §106.45(b)(5)(vii).   

 

a. The investigator will attempt to collect all relevant 

information and evidence.   

 

b. While the investigator will have the burden of gathering 

evidence, it is crucial that the parties present evidence and 

identify witnesses to the investigator so that they may be 

considered during the investigation.   

 

c. While all evidence gathered during the investigative 

process and obtained through the exchange of written 

questions will be considered, the decision-maker may in 

their discretion grant lesser weight to last minute 

information or evidence introduced through the exchange 

of written questions that was not previously presented for 

investigation by the investigator. 

 

d. To the greatest extent possible, and subject to Title IX, the 

school will make reasonable accommodations in an 

investigation to avoid potential re-traumatization of a 

student. 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 8 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

e. The investigative report shall be provided to the     

decision-maker in accordance with the provisions of         

34 CFR §106.45(b)(6)(ii). 

 

9. The decision-maker, who cannot be the same person as the Title IX 

Coordinator or the investigator, shall issue a written determination 

regarding responsibility pursuant to 34 CFR §106.45(b)(7).   

 

a. To reach this determination, the decision-maker will apply  

clear and convincing evidence standard,  which shall be the 

same standard of evidence for formal complaints against 

students as for formal complaints against employees, 

including faculty, and apply the same standard of evidence 

to all formal complaints of sexual harassment pursuant to 

34 CFR §106.45(b)(1)(vii).   

 

b. The decision-maker will facilitate a written question and 

answer period between the parties.   

 

(1) Each party may submit their written questions for 

the other party and witnesses to the decision-maker 

for review.   

 

(2) The questions must be relevant to the case and the 

decision-maker will determine if the questions 

submitted are relevant and will then forward the 

relevant questions to the other party or witnesses for 

a response. 

 

(3) The decision-maker shall then review all the 

responses, determine what is relevant or not 

relevant, and issue a decision as to whether the 

Respondent is responsible for the alleged sexual 

harassment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 9 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

(4) The decision-maker will issue a written 

determination following the review of evidence.  

The written determination will include:  

 

(a) Identification of allegations potentially 

constituting sexual harassment as defined in 

Policy and Regulation 5751 and                 

34 CFR §106.30; 

 

(b) A description of the procedural steps taken 

from the receipt of the complaint through 

the determination, including any 

notifications to the parties, interviews with 

parties and witnesses, site visits, and 

methods used to gather evidence; 

 

(c) Findings of fact supporting the 

determination, conclusions regarding the 

application of this formal grievance process 

to the facts; and 

 

(d) A statement of and rationale for the result as 

to each allegation, including any 

determination regarding responsibility, any 

disciplinary sanctions the decision-maker 

imposed on the Respondent that directly 

relate to the Complainant, and whether 

remedies designed to restore or preserve 

equal access to the school’s education 

program or activity will be provided to the 

Complainant; and procedures and 

permissible bases for the parties to appeal 

the determination.   

 

(5) The written determination will be provided to the 

parties simultaneously.   

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 10 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

(6) Notwithstanding a temporary delay of the grievance 

procedure or the limited extension of the grievance 

procedure time frames with good cause, the written 

determination shall be provided within sixty 

calendar days from receipt of the Complaint.   

 

(a) The sixty calendar day time frame does not 

include the appeal process.  

 

(7) Remedies and supportive measures that do not 

impact the Respondent should not be disclosed in 

the written determination; rather the determination 

should simply state that remedies will be provided 

to the Complainant.   

 

E. Appeals 

 

1. The school district will offer both parties an appeal from a 

determination regarding responsibility, and from the Title IX 

Coordinator’s dismissal of a formal complaint or any allegations 

therein in accordance with 34 CFR §106.45(b)(8)(i).   

 

2. As to all appeals, the school district will comply with the 

requirements of 34 CFR §106.45(b)(8).   

 

3. The Superintendent shall designate an appeal officer for each 

appeal filed. 

 

a. The appeal officer shall not be the same person as the 

decision-maker that reached the determination regarding 

responsibility or dismissal, the investigator, or the Title IX 

Coordinator in accordance with 34 CFR 

§106.45(b)(8)(iii)(B). 

 

4. The Complainant and Respondent shall have an equal opportunity 

to appeal the policy violation determination and any sanctions.  

 

5. The school district shall administer the appeal process, but is not a 

party and will not advocate for or against any appeal.  

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 11 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

6. A party may appeal only on the following grounds and the appeal 

shall identify the reason(s) why the party is appealing:  

 

a. There was a procedural error in the hearing process that 

materially affected the outcome;  

 

(1) Procedural error refers to alleged deviations from 

school district policy, and not challenges to policies 

or procedures themselves; 

 

b. There is new evidence that was not reasonably available at 

the time of the hearing and that could have affected the 

outcome;  

 

c. The decision-maker had a conflict of interest or bias that 

affected the outcome;  

 

d. The determination regarding the policy violation was 

unreasonable based on the evidence before the       

decision-maker;  

 

(1) Appealing on this basis is available only to a party 

who participated in the hearing; and  

 

e. The sanctions were disproportionate to the hearing officer’s 

findings.  

 

7. The appeal must be submitted in writing to the Title IX 

Coordinator within ten calendar days following the issuance of the 

notice of determination.  

 

8. The appeal must identify the ground(s) for appeal and contain 

specific arguments supporting each ground for appeal.  

 

9. The Title IX Coordinator shall notify the other party of the appeal, 

and that other party shall have an opportunity to submit a written 

statement in response to the appeal, within ten calendar days. 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 12 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 
 

 

10. The Title IX Coordinator shall inform the parties that they have an 

opportunity to meet with the appeal officer separately to discuss 

the proportionality of the sanction. 
 

11. The appeal officer shall decide the appeal considering the evidence 

presented at the hearing, the investigation file, and the appeal 

statements of both parties.  
 

12. In disproportionate sanction appeals, input the parties provided 

during the meeting may also be considered. 

 

13. The appeal officer shall summarize their decision in a written 

report that will be sent to the Complainant and Respondent within 

twenty calendar days of receiving the appeal. 
 

F. Remedies 

 

1. The Title IX Coordinator shall be responsible for effective 

implementation of any remedies in accordance with                      

34 CFR §106.45(b)(7)(iv).  

 

2. Following receipt of the written determination from the     

decision-maker, the Title IX Coordinator will facilitate the 

imposition of sanctions, if any, the provision of remedies, if any, 

and to otherwise complete the formal resolution process.   

 

3. The appropriate school official designated by the Superintendent, 

after consultation with the Title IX Coordinator, will determine the 

sanctions imposed and remedies provided, if any.   

 

a. The imposition of sanctions or provisions of remedies will 

be revisited by the Title IX Coordinator following the 

appeal officer’s decision, as appropriate. 

 

4. The Title IX Coordinator must provide written notice to the parties 

simultaneously.   

 

5. The school district must disclose to the Complainant the sanctions 

imposed on the Respondent that directly relate to the Complainant 

when such disclosure is necessary to ensure equal access to the 

school district’s education program or activity.   



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 13 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

6. It is important to note that conduct that does not meet the criteria 

under Title IX may violate other Federal or State laws or school 

district policies regarding student misconduct or may be 

inappropriate and require an immediate response in the form of 

supportive measures and remedies to prevent its recurrence and 

address its effects.  

 

G. Parent Rights 

 

1. Consistent with the laws of New Jersey, a student’s parent must be 

permitted to exercise the rights granted to their child under Policy 

and Regulation 5751, whether such rights involve requesting 

supportive measures, filing a formal complaint, or participating in 

a grievance process.   

 

2. A student’s parent must also be permitted to accompany the 

student to meetings, interviews, and hearings, if applicable, during 

a grievance process in order to exercise rights on behalf of the 

student.   

 

3. The student may have an advisor in addition to the parent.   

 

H. Training 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that Title IX Coordinators, 

investigators, decision-makers, appeal officers, and any person who 

facilitates an informal resolution process, receive training in accordance 

with 34 CFR §106.45(b)(1)(iii). 

 

I. Compliance 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the Board Attorney to 

ensure the school district’s response to any allegations of sexual 

harassment and the school district’s grievance process are in accordance 

with 34 CFR §106.44 and 34 CFR §106.45. 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

 Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753-8199        732-255-1500 

 

STUDENTS 

R 5751/page 14 of 14 

Sexual Harassment of Students 

 

 

J. Requirements of New Jersey’s Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act 

 

Any time a report is made to the Title IX Coordinator or formal complaint 

is filed pursuant to Policy and Regulation 5751 and in accordance with            

34 CFR §106, the Title IX Coordinator shall forward the report or 

complaint to the Principal of the school building attended by the alleged 

victim for the Principal to follow the requirements of New Jersey’s Anti-

Bullying Bill of Rights Act and Policy 5512.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 1 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

Aug 21 

M 

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 133 and 224] 

 

R 7432  EYE PROTECTION PRACTICES 

 

A. Eye Protection Devices - N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(a) 

 

The Board of Education requires each student, staff member, and 

school visitor, including individuals present for evening adult-school 

programs, to wear appropriate eye protective devices while 

participating in educational activities and programs as defined in 

N.J.A.C. 6A:7-1.3 in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.1 and 

N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5. 

 

B. Eye Protection Devices - N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(e) 

 

1.The following types of eye protective devices shall be used to fit the 

designated activities or processes The following types of eye protective 

devices must be worn by all students, staff members, and visitors 

(including persons attending evening adult school programs) participating 

in the activity or process designated wherever it may occur on school 

premises: 

 

Potential Eye Hazard Protective Devices 

  

Caustic or explosive Goggle, flexible fitting materials, 

hooded ventilation; add plastic window 

face shield for severe exposure 

  

Dust producing operations Goggle, flexible fitting, hooded 

ventilation 

  

Electric arc welding Welding helmet in combination with 

spectacles with eye cup or semi- or flat-

fold side shields 

  

Oxy-acetylene welding Welding goggle, eye cup type with 

tinted lenses; welding goggle, 

coverspec type with tinted lenses or 

tinted plate lens 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 2 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

 

 

Potential Eye Hazard Protective Devices 

  

Hot liquids and gases Goggle, flexible fitting, hood 

ventilation; add plastic window face 

shield for severe exposure 

  

Hot solids Clear or tinted goggles or spectacles 

with side shields 

  

Molten materials Clear or tinted goggles and plastic or 

mesh window face shield 

  

Heat treatment or tempering Clear or tinted goggles or clear or tinted 

spectacles with side shields 

  

Glare operations Tinted goggles; tinted spectacles with 

side shields or welding goggles, eye cup 

or coverspec coverage type with tinted 

lenses or tinted plate lens 

  

Shaping solid materials Clear goggles, flexible or rigid body; 

clear spectacles with side shields; add 

plastic window face shield for severe 

exposure 

  

Laser device operation or 

experimentation 

Appropriate for specific hazard 

  

Vehicle repair or servicing 
Repair or servicing of 

vehicles 

Clear goggles, flexible or rigid body; 

clear spectacles with side shields 

  

Other potentially hazardous 

processes or activities 

Appropriate for specific hazard 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 3 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

 

 

C. Eye Protective Policy and Program – N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(f) 

 

1. The Board of Education establishes and implements Policy and 

Regulation 7432 to assure: 

 

a. No staff member, student, or visitor shall be subjected 

to any hazardous environmental condition without 

appropriate eye protection; 

 

b. The detection of eye hazardous conditions shall be 

continuous; 

 

c. Eye protection devices shall be inspected regularly and 

adequately maintained; 
 

d. Shared eye protective devices shall be disinfected 

between uses by a method prescribed by the local school 

medical inspector; 
 

e. All eye protective devices shall meet or exceed the 

appropriate specifications for the various types of 

devices and suppliers of eye protective devices shall 

certify, in writing, that the devices meet or exceed said 

specifications; 
 

f. Specific policy and procedures shall be established to 

deal with individuals who refuse to abide by established 

eye-safety practices and procedures; 
 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 4 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

 

 

(2) A staff member who refuses or persistently 

neglects to wear an eye protective device when 

required to do so or fails to observe established 

eye safety practices may be disciplined for 

insubordination for failing to obey the rules 

established by this Board.  The proper 

implementation of eye protection practices shall 

be a criterion in the evaluation of every staff 

member required to observe such practices; and 

 

(3) A visitor to the schools who refuses or 

persistently neglects to wear an eye protective 

device when required to do so or fails to observe 

established eye safety practices may be requested 

to leave the school premises;] 

 

g. The use of contact lenses shall be restricted in learning 

environments that entail exposure to chemical fumes, 

vapors, or splashes, intense heat, molten metals, or 

highly particulate atmospheres.  When permitted, 

contact lenses shall be worn only in conjunction with 

appropriate eye protective devices, and the lens wearer 

shall be identified for appropriate emergency care in 

eye hazardous learning environments; 

 

 

h. All spectacle-type eye protective devices shall have side 

shields of the eye-cup, semi- or flat-fold type; and 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 5 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

 

 

i. Students, staff members, or visitors wearing personal 

corrective eyewear shall be required to wear cover 

goggles or similar devices unless a competent authority 

can certify the personal eyewear meets or exceeds 

standards identified in N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(b).   

 

2. The supplier of any eye protective device to this district shall 

certify in writing that the device meets or exceeds ANSI standards.  

All spectacle type eye protective devices shall have side shields of 

the eye cup, semi-, or flat-fold type. 

 

3. Staff members shall regularly and frequently inspect the eye 

protective devices used in their classes and shall report to the 

Principal devices that are defective or poorly fitting.  All eye 

protective devices shall be identified with the name(s) of the 

user(s) and shall be properly stored when not in use. 

 

4. An eye protective device that is shared shall be disinfected 

between uses by a method prescribed by the local school medical 

inspector. 

 

5. The use of contact lenses shall be restricted in learning 

environments which entail exposure to chemical fumes, vapors or 

splashes, intense heat, molten metals, or highly particulate 

atmospheres.  Staff members in these learning environments shall 

identify the students in his/her class who wear contact lenses.  A 

list of such students shall be kept by the staff member in order that 

appropriate emergency eye care may be given; the list shall be 

destroyed at the end of the course of study. 

 

When permitted, contact lenses may be worn only in conjunction 

with appropriate eye protective devices.  The contact lens wearer 

shall be identified for appropriate emergency eye care in hazardous 

learning environments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 6 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

 

 

6. A student who wears prescription glasses shall be provided with an 

appropriate eye protective device that fits over his/her glasses.  A 

student or staff member may wear his/her personal corrective eye 

wear in the course of an activity hazardous to the eyes provided 

that the eye wear has been certified in writing by a licensed 

optician to meet or exceed ANSI standards as defined in N.J.A.C. 

6:29-1.7(b)1 and 2 for the appropriate eye protective device 

required.   

 

7. The responsible staff member will provide each visitor to an area 

in which an activity hazardous to eyes is conducted with an 

appropriate eye protective device. 

 

DB. Eye Wash Fountains - N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(d) 

 

1. Emergency eye wash fountains, or similar devices capable of a 

minimum fifteen minutes continuous flow of eye-wash solution, 

shall be provided in classrooms, shops, laboratories, or other 

areas where students or instructors are exposed to caustic 

materials that can cause damage to the eyes in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(d). Eye wash fountains or similar devices, 

capable of a minimum of fifteen minutes of continuous flow of eye 

wash solution shall be provided in accordance with Policy No. 

7432 and the standards of the State Department of Education and 

N.J.A.C. 6:29-1.7(d).   

 

2. Eye wash fountains shall be routinely checked by the responsible 

staff member and any fountain that does not operate properly shall 

be promptly reported to the Principal. 

 

EC. Inspection Enforcement 

 

1. Staff members shall not permit students to engage in an activity 

potentially hazardous to the eyes without appropriate eye 

protection and shall dismiss from the class period a student who 

refuses or persistently neglects to wear eye protection or to observe 

established eye protection practices.  Any such dismissed student 

shall be reported absent for the class. 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

PROPERTY 

R 7432/page 7 of 7 

Eye Protection Practices 

 

 

2. Staff members shall report to the Building Principal a visitor who 

refuses or persistently neglects to wear eye protection or observe 

established eye protection practices. 

 

3. The Principal or designee shall annually inspect the school premises for 

the existence of conditions potentially hazardous to the eyes, for the 

placement of signs requiring appropriate eye protective devices, and for an 

adequate supply of appropriate eye protective devices in satisfactory 

condition.  Conditions potentially hazardous to the eyes include, in 

addition to the activities listed in paragraph A.1. above, the likelihood of 

flying objects and spilled liquids and the presence of protruding and sharp 

objects. 

 

FD. Training and Supplies - N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(g) 

 

The school district shall provide annual training and appropriate supplies 

and equipment to all school personnel responsible for implementing the 

eye safety policies and program.  The training shall include all aspects of 

eye protection as defined in this Policy and Regulation 7432 and in 

accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.5(g) regulation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted Issued: 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

R 8420.1/page 1 of 5 

Fire and Fire Drills 

Aug 21 

M 

 

See POLICY ALERT Nos. 189 and 224] 

 

R 8420.1  FIRE AND FIRE DRILLS 

 

A. Fire Drills 

 

1. The Principal of each school building will conduct at least one fire 

drill each month within school hours, including any summer 

months during which the school is open for instructional programs.  

The Principal shall require all teachers to keep all doors and 

exits of their respective rooms and buildings unlocked during 

school hours.  Where school buildings have been provided with 

fire escapes, they shall be used by a part or all of the students 

performing every fire drill Attempts should be made to conduct 

drills in various weather conditions and at various times of the 

school day.  Fire drills should always be unannounced to school 

staff and students.  The Principal shall inform local fire fighting 

officials whenever a fire alarm is for drill purposes. 

 

Attempts should be made to conduct drills in various weather 

conditions and at various times of the school day.  Fire drills 

should be unannounced to school staff and students.  The 

Principal shall inform local firefighting officials whenever a 

fire alarm is for drill purposes. 

 

An actual fire that occurs at a school building during the 

month and includes activities which are the equivalent of a 

drill shall be considered a drill for the purposes of meeting the 

requirements of this Regulation and N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1. 

 

2. The fFire alarm shall be by a building-wide audible designated 

signal.  Alarm signals should be tested regularly, before or after the 

school session.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

R 8420.1/page 2 of 5 

Fire and Fire Drills 

 

 

3. When the fire alarm rings, each staff member supervising 

students teacher will:  

 

a. Direct students to form into a single file line and proceed 

along the evacuation route to the nearest exit designated for 

evacuation; 

 

b. Close the windows of the room and turn off all lights and 

audio-visual equipment; 

 

c. Take the class register or roll book; 

 

d. Ascertain that all students have left the room and that any 

student who may have left the classroom prior to the fire 

drill is located and escorted from the building; 

 

e. Close all doors to the room when the room is empty and 

keep all doors and exits of their respective rooms and 

buildings unlocked during the school hours, except during 

an emergency lockdown or an emergency lockdown drill; 

 

f. Ensure their assigned students assigned to him/her have 

left the school along the route prescribed in the school 

evacuation plan.  In the event a school building has been 

provided with fire escapes, they shall be used by a part or 

all of the students performing every fire drill; 

 

g. Direct his/her students to a location not less than a distance 

twice the height of the building walls and keep the students 

in a single file line facing the building; 

 

h. Take attendance to determine all students who reported to 

his/her class have been evacuated from the building and 

report immediately to the Principal any student who is 

unaccounted for; and  

 

i. When the recall signal is given, conduct his/her students 

back to the classroom. 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

R 8420.1/page 3 of 5 

Fire and Fire Drills 

 

 

4. Evacuation of the school in a fire drill must be conducted quickly 

and quietly and in an orderly fashion.  Students must be silent, 

refrain from talking and running, and remain in closed, single file 

lines. Any student or staff member whose behavior disrupts the 

conduct of the fire drill shall be reported to the Principal and will 

be subject to discipline. 

 

5. All persons in the school must leave the building during a fire drill, 

including all aides, visitors, volunteer workers, and all office, 

cafeteria, custodial, and maintenance employees, except those 

employees who have been assigned specific duties to be performed 

in the school building during a fire drill.   

 

6. Physical education classes in progress outside the building should 

stop the game activity and line up in place or in their regularly 

assigned drill position. 

 

7. Students will be instructed not to gather belongings to take outside 

on the fire drill.  In inclement or cold weather, students may pick 

up their coats and put them on as they exit the building, provided 

no time is lost in that activity. 

 

8. The office employee responsible for keeping the central attendance 

register, or a designated substitute, must carry the register out of 

the building during the drill.   

 

9. Each Principal shall report monthly to the Superintendent on the 

conduct of fire drills.  His/Her Their report will include the date, 

weather conditions, and time to evacuate for each drill conducted, 

as well as any comments that could assist in improving the conduct 

of future drills. 

 

10. Every fire drill will be conducted with seriousness and with the 

assumption that prompt evacuation is actually required for the 

safety and survival of persons in the school. 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

R 8420.1/page 4 of 5 

Fire and Fire Drills 

 

 

11. Principals are encouraged to change the circumstances of fire drills 

so that staff members and students are subjected to various 

conditions and learn to respond to them quickly, constructively, 

and safely.  Any such variations should take into account the ages 

and abilities of children. 

 

a. One or more exits may be designated as “blocked” so that 

students are required to use alternative evacuation routes. 

 

b. A fire drill may be designated as a “smoke drill” so that 

students learn to avoid the hazards of smoke by walking in 

a low or crouching position (not a crawling position). 
 

B. Fire 

 

1. A school staff member or any building occupant who detects a fire 

in a school building or on school grounds shall immediately report 

the fire by calling 911 and/or by activating a fire alarm pull station 

in accordance with law. 

 

2. The school staff member or building occupant shall also report the 

fire to the school Principal, if possible. 

 

3. In the event of a fire in a school building, the school Principal shall 

immediately sound the fire alarm, in the event the fire alarm had 

not been previously activated, for the evacuation of all students, 

staff members, visitors, and volunteers. 

 

4. Evacuation shall be conducted in accordance with the fire drill 

procedures established in paragraph A. above, except that no 

employee may remain in the building to perform specific duties. 

 

5. As a precaution, the Principal or designee will maintain a record of 

disabled students who may require special attention in the event of 

fire or other evacuation.  Fire fighters will be promptly informed of 

the location and special circumstances of each such student. 

 

6. As soon as practicable after the incident, the Principal shall submit 

a report to the Superintendent on the appropriate form. 

 



REGULATION GUIDE 

  Copyright 2021        Strauss Esmay Associates, LLP        1886 Hinds Road        Suite 1        Toms River, NJ  08753 - 8199        732-255-1500 

 

OPERATIONS 

R 8420.1/page 5 of 5 

Fire and Fire Drills 

 

 

7. The school district shall immediately notify the appropriate 

local fire department of any fire which occurs in a school 

building or on school property in accordance with N.J.S.A. 

18A:41-5.  

 

C.  Fire and Smoke Doors 

 

Every Principal and custodian/janitor in each school building in the 

district which has a furnace room, hallway, or stair-tower fire or 

smoke doors shall keep them closed during the time the school 

building is occupied by teachers and students pursuant to N.J.S.A. 

18A:41-2.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 

 


